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(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1629

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — DoubleLine Total Return Fund)
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2003 26
)
) 2021
2021 480,000 5,308
110.58 480,000 110.58
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,058
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2021
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
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MSCI Inc.

MSCI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

NOMURA-BP
FTSE

FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
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53,232,232.96 96.13
2,100,331.29 3.79
55,332,564.25 99.92
45,238.18 0.08
55,377,802.43
100.00
6,123,677,393
2021
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 3,718,587.84| 98.83| 3,674,903.23|106.90| 3,975,276.75| 7.18
04/15/44 15
FNR 2014-29 BZ 3% 2044
3 2,479,058.56 | 99.45| 2,465,338.37|107.01| 2,652,753.30| 4.79
05/25/44 25
UMBS P#CA4508 2.5% 2034
2.5 2,190,687.23]100.97 | 2,211,992.92]105.46| 2,310,332.75| 4.17
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#BE7188 4% 2047
4 1,548,773.92|104.68 | 1,621,303.34|109.26| 1,692,160.97 3.06
03/01/747
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
3.26 1,575,000.00 | 100.00 | 1,574,935.69|103.64| 1,632,352.05| 2.95
11/25/25 11 25
UMBS P#BL5315 2.44% 2032
2.44 1,500,000.00 | 100.47| 1,507,116.97 | 106.93| 1,604,021.07 2.90
01/01/32
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
2.5 1,500,000.00| 96.39| 1,445,803.22|103.16| 1,547,409.90| 2.79
12/25/49 12 25
UMBS P#CA4507 2.5% 2034
2.5 1,366,391.07| 101.04| 1,380,541.64 | 105.93| 1,447,364.51 2.61
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
3.5 1,262,900.15]102.58 | 1,295,446.03|107.93| 1,363,102.87 2.46
01/01/46
US TREAS BDS 1.625% 2050
10 1.625 1,500,000.00| 95.96| 1,439,425.48| 89.86| 1,347,890.63| 2.43
11/15/50 11 15
FGLMC P#Q44452 3% 2046
11 3 1,180,803.51| 99.50| 1,174,863.39|105.12| 1,241,281.15| 2.24
11/01/46 11
OOMLT 2007-6 1A1 V/R 2037
12 0.2815 1,309,841.82| 86.02| 1,126,789.25| 92.56| 1,212,374.92 2.19
07/25/37 25
US TREAS NTS 1.625% 2031
13 1.625 1,100,000.00 | 100.16| 1,101,779.17|101.66| 1,118,218.75| 2.02
05/15/31 15
MABS 2007-HE1 A3 V/R 2037
14 0.3015 1,137,152.28 | 95.73| 1,088,548.74| 97.16| 1,104,894.23| 2.00
05/25/37 25
US TREAS NTS 0.875% 2026
15 0.875 1,100,000.00| 99.93| 1,099,184.02| 100.00| 1,100,000.00 1.99
6/30/26 30
UMBS P#RB5118 2% 2041
16 2 1,000,000.00| 101.82| 1,018,208.08 | 101.78| 1,017,775.11 1.84
07/01/741
US TREAS NTS 1.25% 2028
17 1.25 1,000,000.00 | 100.23 | 1,002,303.83|100.25| 1,002,500.00 1.81
06/30/28 30
UMBS P#RB5085 2% 2040
18 2 932,204.87 | 103.18 961,829.71]101.83 949,219.71 1.71
11/01/40 11
FNR 2018-33 A 3% 2048
19 3 904,038.03| 97.21 878,820.58 | 104.08 940,901.18 1.70
05/25/48 25
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046
20 3.5 846,442.06 | 102.78 870,011.57 | 107.49 909,828.96 1.64
08/01/46
UMBS P#7T71827 3% 2047
21 3 693,033.12 ] 101.25 701,665.90 | 105.20 729,096.47 1.32
07/01/47
WMABS 2006-HE3 1 V/R 2036
22 0.2465 757,841.70| 93.60 709,305.83| 94.84 718,728.96 1.30
08/25/36 25
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CWHL 2006-0A5 2A V/R 2046

23 0.4915 743,784.99| 87.26 648,996.16 | 87.02 647,257.32 1.17
04/25/36 25
LBMLT 2006-9 2A2 V/R 2036

24 0.2015 1,513,468.68 | 49.93 755,646.68 | 42.43 642,102.10 1.16
10/25/36 10 25
PRPM 2021-2 A2 V/R 2026

25 3.77 600,000.00 | 100.00 599,995.89| 99.96 599,738.40 1.08
03/25/24 25
FHR 4223 SB V/R 2043

26 5.3198 561,774.01| 90.68 509,399.03 | 105.02 589,995.68 1.07
07/15/43 15
JMIKE 2019-1A 4.433% 2050

27 4.433 550,000.00 | 106.81 587,454.82 | 107.12 589,176.50 1.06
02/15/27 15
UMBS P#MA2806 3% 2046

28 3 556,285.48 | 100.70 560,185.42 | 105.79 588,509.51 1.06
11/01/46 11
CWALT 2005-4 1A 5.5% 2035

29 5.5 683,399.82| 90.50 618,472.42| 85.88 586,878.89 1.06
04/25/35 25
RASC 2007-EMX1 A V/R 2037

30 0.2916 592,298.12| 91.04 539,218.01| 93.87 555,972.54 1.00
01/25/37 25
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2020 2021
2018 28 8,686,382.00 960,540,122 9.87 1,001
2019 28 2,762,565.00 305,484,438 9.87 1,001
2020 29 2,527,093.00 279,445,944 10.40 1,150
2021 28 3,912,075.00 432,597,254 10.06 1,112
2020 3,086,464.02 341,301,191 10.24 1,132
3,379,063.00 373,656,787 10.22 1,130
3,385,718.76 374,392,780 10.24 1,132
10 3,362,726.61 371,850,309 10.16 1,123
11 3,958,864.83 437,771,273 10.19 1,127
12 3,957,143.92 437,580,975 10.18 1,126
2021 3,961,086.30 438,016,923 10.19 1,127
3,912,075.00 432,597,254 10.06 1,112
3,876,785.93 428,694,988 9.96 1,101
3,899,775.48 431,237,173 10.02 1,108
3,725,035.17 411,914,389 10.02 1,108
3,731,705.31 412,651,973 10.04 1,110
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 3,424,164,105 9.93 1,098
2019 28 23,351,368.00 2,582,194,273 10.05 1,111
2020 29 39,075,715.00 4,320,992,565 10.73 1,187
2021 28 19,700,876.00 2,178,522,868 10.50 1,161
2020 37,855,241.06 4,186,032,556 10.60 1,172
29,760,658.00 3,290,933,562 10.60 1,172

29,919,115.42 3,308,455,783 10.58 1,170

10 29,635,568.24 3,277,101,136 10.53 1,164

11 29,402,785.78 3,251,360,052 10.57 1,169

12 19,723,702.07 2,181,046,975 10.59 1,171

2021 20,094,955.81 2,222,100,213 10.61 1,173
19,700,876.00 2,178,522,868 10.50 1,161

19,274,929.55 2,131,421,710 10.36 1,146

18,105,410.81 2,002,096,327 10.44 1,154

17,914,591.48 1,980,995,526 10.46 1,157

17,422,451.31 1,926,574,666 10.50 1,161
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2020 533,768,433 9,673
529,850,136 9,654

512,678,071 9,671

10 509,091,234 9,603

11 481,770,585 9,627

12 474,544,408 9,613

2021 474,905,791 9,620
468,996,501 9,499

464,602,139 9,410

439,628,129 9,463

430,446,754 9,464

431,122,732 9,478
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 ”9 4,110,797,927 10,045
201 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2020 3,846,678,881 9,865
3,801,069,440 9,860

3,797,973,008 9,851

10 3,776,517,707 9,795

11 3,790,080, 264 9,833

12 3,806,061,357 9,833

2021 3,814,576,866 9,855
3,626,665,845 9,746

3,412,095,585 9,629

3,370,606, 164 9,698

3,356,786,734 9,713

3,367,359,716 9,744
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0.12 13 0.06 7
0.24 27 0.12 13
0.24 27 0.12 13
0.24 27 0.12 13
2021 0.02 2 0.06 7
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.92 102 0.48 53
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60 40
120 80
120 80
120 80
2021 10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
460 320
-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18
100x
10
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929,636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3,642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588, 854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
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2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
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28

2021 28

63,548,669

468,996,501
49,371

3,626,665,845
372,105

3,912,075
388,954

19,700,876
1,876,149

110.58
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62,718,701 6,935,434
146,393 16,188
1,111,068 122,862
1,297 143
171,193 18,931
16,066 1,777
64,164,718 7,095,335
1,509,286 166,897
7,844 867
62,423 6,903
33,573 3,713
25,038 2,769
14,954 1,654
9,533 1,054
7,788 861
2,998 332
2,094 232
398,565 44,073
35,186 3,891
2,109,282 233,244
62,055,436 6,862,090
60,395,415 6,678,525
1,660,021 183,565
62,055,436 6,862,090
9,499
9,746
10.06 1,112
10.50 1,161
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2021 28

2,941,253 325,244
2,941,253 325,244
512,749 56,700
452,426 50,029
70,481 7,794
55,782 6,168
24,105 2,666
15,081 1,668
15,002 1,659
2,813 311
78,820 8,716
1,227,259 135,710
1,713,994 189,533
(99,040) (10,952)
1,499,035 165,763
1,399,995 154,811
(2,483,808) (274,659)
(1,389,467) (153,647)
(3,873,275) (428,307)
(2,473,280) (273,495)
(759, 286) (83,962)

110.58
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2021 28

1,713,994 189,533
1,399,995 154,811

(3,873,275) (428,307)

(759, 286) (83,962)

(63,238) (6,993)

(300,078) (33,183)

(78,475) (8.678)

(383, 669) (42,426)

(825,460) (91,279)

1,111 96,248 10,643
2,108 199,282 22,037
211,506 2,135,376 236,130
292,891 3,093,559 342,086
26,655 (2,396,869) (265,046)
39,246 (3,615, 856) (399,841)
65,521 (648, 486) (71,710)
2,059,636 (21,796,912) (2,410,303)
(22,933, 658) (2,536,004)

(24,518,404) (2,711,245)

86,573,840 9,573,335

62,055,436 6,862,090

110.58
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2021 28

(759, 286) (83,962)
(32,516,566) (3,595,682)
50,812,410 5,618,836

(94,758) (10,478)
99,040 10,952
2,483,808 274,659
1,389,410 153,641
43,604 4,822
(32,576) (3,602)
(295) (33)

5,686 629
2,534 280
(12,022) (1,329)
(19,107) (2,113)
(676) (75)

7,347 812
8,791 972
21,417,344 2,368,330
5,525,048 610,960
(27,075,792) (2,994,041)
(825,460) (91,279)
(22,376,204) (2,474,361)
(958,860) (106,031)
1,105,253 122,219
146,393 16,188
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2021 28
2021 2021
28 28 2021 28 2021 28
9,878 10,045 10.40 1,150 10.73 1,187
©) 177 224 0.25 28 0.24 27
(436) (443) (0.35) (39) (0.35) (39)
(259) (219) (0.10) (11) (0.11) 12)
(120) (80) (0.24) QN 0.12) (13)
9,499 9,746 10.06 1,112 10.50 1,161
(2.63) (2.19) (0.95) (1.03)
468,997 3,626,666 3,912 432,589 19,701 2,178,537
2.06 1.64 1.58 1.55
1.86 2.30 2.43 2.30

@

110.58
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2021 28
(@D)
101.1
101.1
62.5
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
706,995 5.50% due 04/25/35 1.0 606,718
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
630,472 0.30% due 06/25/47() 0.9 550,221
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust 2017-ATRM Class
E
111,000 3.16% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.1 89,003
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage 2019-CRE6 Trust
Class D
100,000 2.41% due 09/15/36().(> 0.2 99,015
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
059,940 1.40% due 05/15/50® 0.1 58,775
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,439,239 0.82% due 07/15/60® 0.1 55,600
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,860,131 0.73% due 02/15/61® 0.1 79,081
Bank 2019-BNK19 Class AS
82,000 3.45% due 08/15/61 0.1 89,730
BANK 2020-BNK25 Class AS
8,000 2.84% due 01/15/63 0.0 8,425
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 3.35% due 03/15/37(M).(> 0.1 89,438
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al
316,166 2.80% due 02/25/47® 0.5 311,722
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
183,120 1.37% due 08/25/37() 0.3 183,993
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
999,140 1.78% due 09/15/53® 0.2 113,354
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,538,560 0.73% due 09/15/48(.® 0.2 97,796
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class D
42,911 2.16% due 07/15/34M.( 0.1 42,884
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class E
104,550 3.26% due 07/15/34().(> 0.2 104,665
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
135,000 3.94% due 12/09/41(».() 0.2 133,923
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41®.® 0.1 90,764
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
595,952 0.28% due 10/25/36(® 0.9 575,389
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(@)

CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,408,376 1.29% due 05/10/50® 0.1 79,658
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C8 Class
XA
1,314,603 1.60% due 06/15/50() 0.1 90,304
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2A1
784,290 0.52% due 04/25/46(M 1.1 682,378
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
2,079,570 1.14% due 03/10/47®) 0.1 59,269
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,582,342 0.78% due 11/10/48® 0.1 43,847
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
385,435 1.11% due 04/14/50® 0.0 19,687
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(®.(® 0.1 92,053
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41®.(® 0.1 90,720
CLNC 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
100,000 1.66% due 08/20/35(1.(2 0.2 100,658
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
17,271,051 0.09% due 07/10/45® 0.0 29,371
COMM 2013-LC6 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,289,655 1.32% due 01/10/46® 0.0 23,513
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,259,670 0.69% due 07/10/48() 0.1 56,606
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,278,304 1.08% due 12/15/52(®) 0.1 89,394
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
105,000 2.26% due 08/15/37(® 0.2 107,436
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class C
51,000 3.23% due 04/05/33® 0.1 50,792
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class D
61,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@.() 0.1 60,521
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class E
89,000 3.33% due 04/05/33®.® 0.1 87,962
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XACP
7,012,000 0.00% due 04/05/33@.® 0.0 70
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XBCP
2,553,000 0.00% due 04/05/33@.® 0.0 2
DBUBS 2017-BRBK Mortgage Trust Class E
100,000 3.53% due 10/10/34.® 0.2 102,840
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class A2
48,117 2.93% due 12/26/46(.® 0.1 48,164
Exantas Capital Corp. 2019-RS07 Ltd. Class A
36,482 1.11% due 04/15/36(.@ 0.1 36,437
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(@)

Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-1
Class D
250,000 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.4 248,910
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
1,139,709 3.00% due 05/25/48 1.9 1,205,881
FNMA REMICS Class BZ
2,454,422 3.00% due 05/25/44 4.3 2,608,902
FNMA REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 2.5 1,528,558
Fontainebleau Miami Beach Trust 2019-FBLU
Class E
85,000 3.96% due 12/10/36®.® 0.1 86,397
Freddie Mac Multifamily Structured Pass
Through Certificates Class A2
1,500,000 1.72% due 07/25/35 2.3 1,445,051
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
720,585 5.28% due 07/15/43® 1.2 750,386
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
3,681,633 3.00% due 04/15/44 6.3 3,898,366
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
354,252 3.97% due 12/15/44(.(® 0.6 346,226
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
1,799,000 1.00% due 05/16/63(® 0.2 162,271
1,676,000 1.12% due 08/16/62® 0.3 158,634
Grace Trust 2020-GRCE Class D
93,000 2.68% due 12/10/402.® 0.1 89,806
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class E
101,000 2.84% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.2 97,970
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class F
101,000 3.24% due 12/15/36(1.( 0.2 95,445
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Trust 2019-SOHO
Class E
82,000 1.99% due 06/15/36(M.(> 0.1 77,751
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,447,196 0.99% due 02/10/48® 0.1 47,370
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
876,234 1.03% due 05/10/50® 0.1 47,386
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
980,815 1.12% due 08/10/50 0.1 52,988
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2018-GS9 Class C
200,000 4.36% due 03/10/51® 0.4 218,218
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
1,227,433 0.67% due 02/13/53® 0.1 60,527
HPLY Trust 2019-HIT Class F
81,353 3.26% due 11/15/36(M.(> 0.1 77,685
J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D
120,000 1.77% due 07/15/36(.( 0.2 119,097
Jamestown CLO XII Ltd. Class A2
500,000 2.37% due 04/20/32®.(» 0.8 508,515
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(@)
Jersey Mike"s Funding Class A2
550,000 4.43% due 02/15/50® 0.9 585,998
Jimmy Johns Funding LLC 2017-1A Class A211
241,250 4.85% due 07/30/47® 0.4 253,742

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class D
3,115 2.01% due 06/15/32(.( 0.0 3,107
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
2,311,190 1.71% due 07/15/47® 0.1 35,466
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B
100,000 3.40% due 08/15/49( 0.2 105,442
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-LAQ Class A
54,753 1.11% due 06/15/32(M.(> 0.1 54,752
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX
67,000 5.36% due 07/05/33®@.() 0.1 67,526
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E
100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(.(®) 0.1 88,346
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C28 Class C
94,000 4.15% due 10/15/48®) 0.1 92,653
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA
1,027,228 1.21% due 11/15/48® 0.1 33,268
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2019-COR6 Class AS
113,000 3.41% due 11/13/52® 0.2 122,667
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class B
107,000 3.29% due 05/13/53® 0.2 113,818
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA
917,438 1.66% due 05/13/53®) 0.2 101,078
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust 2020-GS4 Class Al
459,555 3.25% due 02/25/602.(% 0.7 465,190
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2
1,554,502 0.23% due 10/25/36( 1.1 679,691
MASTR Asset Backed Securities Trust 2007-HEl
Class A3
1,255,811 0.33% due 05/25/37() 2.0 1,217,469
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA

1,026,260 1.00% due 12/15/47() 0.0 29,722
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 2017-HR2 Class C
100,000 4.22% due 12/15/50 0.2 108,122
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
1,181,804 1.51% due 08/15/49® 0.1 69,261
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(@)

1,236,425

968,762

91,000

1,689,545

185,000

113,000

1,365,621

612,291

489,394

481,244

477,118

582,477

1,054,807

685,749

1,759,071

55,456

55,456

500,000

250,000

123,371

160,703

500,000

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA

0.74% due 12/15/493

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA

1.42% due 06/15/50®

Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2019-L3 Class
AS

3.49% due 11/15/52

Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA

0.64% due 11/15/52®

MRCD 2019-MARK Mortgage Trust Class G

2.72% due 12/15/36(

Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D

3.75% due 12/15/38(2)

Option One Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-6 Class
1A1

0.31% due 07/25/37

PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A

2.88% due 05/27/231W.(

PRPM 2019-GS1 Class Al

3.47% due 10/25/24.(®

PRPM 2020-1 LLC Class Al

2.98% due 02/25/25@.%

PRPM 2020-5 LLC Class Al

3.10% due 11/25/25@).%

RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3

6.00% due 09/25/36

RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All

0.35% due 06/25/37()

RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3

0.33% due 01/25/37()

Residential Asset Securitization Trust 2006-
A9CB Class A6

6.00% due 09/25/36

Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0OSS Class A
1.94% due 06/15/33(.(>

Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0OSS Class B
2.24% due 06/15/33(M.(>

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B

3.49% due 11/26/40(

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C

4.16% due 11/26/40(

Springleaf Funding Trust 2017-AA Class A
2.68% due 07/15/30®

Sprite 2017-1 Ltd. Class A

4.25% due 12/15/37®

Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1

3.22% due 01/28/50.®
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0.1 36,935

0.1 56,556

0.2 98,674

0.1 80,444

0.3 174,541

0.2 110,947

2.0 1,261,340

1.0 602,934

0.8 495,285

0.8 482,467

0.8 481,768

0.9 549,308

0.8 505,354

1.0 637,887

1.5 918,074

0.1 55,453

0.1 55,733

0.8 519,424

0.4 261,813

0.2 123,758

0.3 160,597

0.8 506,658
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(@)

Stack Infrastructure Issuer LLC Class A2
460,000 1.89% due 08/25/45® 0.7 462,788
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A2
307,358 4.22% due 10/25/48®.® 0.5 316,443
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A3
307,358 4.38% due 10/25/48®2.() 0.5 316,809
Steele Creek CLO 2016-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 1.34% due 06/15/31(M.(> 0.8 498,160
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E
2,430 3.45% due 11/11/341.® 0.0 2,272
THL Credit Wind River 2018-1 Clo Ltd. Class B
500,000 1.89% due 07/15/30D.® 0.8 500,097
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
1,061,004 1.52% due 06/15/50 0.1 77,786
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class B
100,000 4.09% due 08/15/50® 0.2 106,719
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,366,772 1.10% due 08/15/50() 0.2 122,404
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-
C5 Class XA
1,654,073 0.91% due 03/10/46®.® 0.0 21,933
VCAT 2019-NPL2 LLC Class Al
193,706 3.57% due 11/25/49(.(®) 0.3 194,133
Vericrest Opportunity Loan Trust 2019-NPL2
Class Al
309,682 3.97% due 02/25/49®.(% 0.5 310,858
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63® 0.8 503,554
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54®.® 2.6 1,588,149
VOLT LXXXV LLC Class AlA
188,844 3.23% due 01/25/50(.(% 0.3 189,558
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
479,695 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.4 278,694
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE3 Trust Class 1A
835,620 0.27% due 08/25/36(M 1.3 790,258
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
760,095 1.62% due 03/15/59() 0.1 50,205
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
914,154 1.02% due 07/15/50® 0.1 45,380
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,464,127 0.84% due 12/15/52®) 0.1 91,567

72/209



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q)
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-
C56 Class B
104,000 3.75% due 06/15/53(® 0.2 114,509
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2A1
571,801 2.77% due 10/25/36() 0.9 548,966
38,799,052
6.9
U.S. Treasury Bond
2,000,000 1.63% due 11/15/50 2.9 1,750,313
600,000 1.88% due 02/15/51 0.9 559,031
U.S. Treasury Note
2,100,000 0.63% due 08/15/30 3.1 1,949,719
4,259,063
31.7
Fannie Mae Pool
245,022 2.00% due 11/01/40 0.4 250,274
966,127 2.00% due 10/01/50 1.6 967,769
2,000,000 2.41% due 10/01/29 3.5 2,118,209
1,500,000 2.44% due 01/01/32 2.5 1,575,664
3,871,452 2.50% due 11/01/34 6.7 4,109,761
675,583 3.00% due 11/01/46 1.2 716,575
556,400 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.9 588,937
1,444,679 3.50% due 01/01/46 2.5 1,572,194
1,884,527 4.00% due 03/01/47 3.3 2,062,791
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
1,423,543 3.00% due 11/01/46 2.4 1,500,043
987,682 3.50% due 08/01/46 1.7 1,085,329
250,523 3.50% due 11/01/46 0.4 273,299
Freddie Mac Pool
980,141 2.00% due 11/01/40 1.6 1,001,152
954,594 2.00% due 10/01/50 1.6 956,219
836,472 3.00% due 07/01/47 1.4 882,370
19,660,586
62,718,701
63,548,669 62,718,701
63,548,669 101.1 62,718,701
(1.0 (663,265)
100.0 62,055,436
(6,862,090,113 )
(12021 28 Floating Rate
(2)144A 1933 144A
(3)2021 28 Variable Rate
(4)2021 28
110.58
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Brown
Brothers
) 25,606 2021 30 242 1 1
Harriman & ( ) () ()
Co.
CITI PB 484,600,010 2021 30 (4,594,591) (44,506)  (44,506)
CITI PB 81,872 2021 30 (8.622,896) 909 909
CITI PB 47,419 2021 30 (5,026,821) 220 220
1,129 (44,507)  (43,378)
Brown
Brothers * «
Harrinen & 989 2021 30 ) ) 0
Co.
Brown
Brothers
Harrinan & 175,405 2021 30 (1,656) ©) )
Co.
CITI PB 3,855,023,632 2021 30 (36,550, 261) (354,049)  (354,049)
Brown
Brothers 9,227 2021 30 (969,270) 126 126
Harriman &
Co.
Brown
Brothers 1,351,342 2021 30 (143,115,762) 7,576 7,576
Harriman &
Co.
CITI PB 651,752 2021 30 (68,643,324) 7,235 7,235
14,937  (354,058)  (339,121)
0.50
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2021 28
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
2020 12 CIBC
UFJ UFJ PB
UFJ UFJ
PB SMBC
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2021 28

2021 28
62,718,701 62,718,701
16,066 16,066
62,734,767 62,734,767
2021 28
398,565 398,565
398,565 398,565
FASB ASC 740

50
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12 62,611
2,945,465
22,652,825
2021 28
)
(
2020 29
2021 28
2020 29
2021 28

)
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9,051
43
24 217,243
39
24 1,281,330
)
)
) D
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
96,248 199,282 2,135,376 3,093,559 5,524,465
(2.396,869) (3,615,856) (648,486)  (21,796,912)  (28,458,123)
(63,238)  (300,078) (78,475) (383, 669) (825, 460)
(94,521)  (353,515) (23,433) (287,817) (759, 286)
4,402,070 34,040,415 3,912,075 19,700,876 62,055,436
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
1,111 2,108 211,506 292,891 507,616
(26,655) (39,246) (65,521)  (2,059,636)  (2,191,058)
49,371 372,105 388,954 1,876,149 2,686,579
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89.16

10

2021
1,350,747
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91.48 10.06 10.50

10,000

10.00

2021 28
28 158,539

10
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15
15
2017
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2021 28 NNA
MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 7,702 (10) 7,692
Citibank PB 8,364 (8,364)
16,066 (8,374) 7,692
2021 28 MNA
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MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 (10)
Citibank PB 398,555 (8,364) 390,191
398,565 (8,374) 390,191
@
2021 28
16,066 (398,565)
2021 28
1,489,522 (1,389,410)
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2021 28
512,749 2021 28 33,573
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
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28 14,954

28

2021 28

2021 28

10

11

50,000

15,000

2,094

62,423

FATCA/CRS

2021

15,002

28

2021

2021

2021
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2021

0.015
2021

0.02
15,081

0.60
452,426
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2007 - 2008

1970

83/209



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

COoVID-19
CoVID-19
12
13
FASB 2018 28 ASU 2018-13 820
ASU 2018-13 ASU 2018-13
ASC 820 an
entity shall disclose at a minimum at a minimum
ASU 2018-13
ASC 820
2019 12 15
14
2021
2021 2021 942
183,654 102,089 29,961
2021 2021 338,415
2,582,461 273,529
2,296,175
17,452 129,895
30,778 111,698
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2021

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Azzars:

IFrestert b sty P, SF value {codl of USD 63 548, 669] L 62, P18, 0
Ll T, 350
RE0r wase Tor (AwrwIrments ol 1111068
Reoe wase for e prion prooeeds 1197
Interet frdivablie 171,153
Usrealzed appreciation on lonwand fore gn oomency cxchangs contrads 1k 5

Toaal assets

54, 14, T8

[Liabali bies:

Paypalsie for st redeeed 1, 5 TG
Payaliale for Invesiments purchased 7Haa
Arerued dHFDUINS e H2427
Arerud mankgement e 33573
Accrued prodess onal fees 25H8
AU CLTD0E 0 A S el T ST raos fer 14,554
Arerued trushes feey LR
Accried trarefer agens fees 7. ras
Accrued negEEGn e 1998
Aaerud Ejent camaey s hees L
Unreal zed deprecation on forwand Foneign oomeny cRrange comiras 98,565
[ s 35,186
Total Randlnies 2,108, 133
Het Anets At ributable to Unitholders LA HM
Amabysls of Net Assets:

Pad i camital LS B, TS5 4105
Total atributable paraisgy LG0T
et Assets Amritatable to Unitholders s 62,055 435
Kot Avset Value per Unit

{RPF Moy Distrizetion Class IPY 453,596,501 + 89,371 Units outstanaing) 1PV 9455
{FFY SemsAnnual Distrouton Cass JFF 3606 50 B45S + 3T 105 UsEs outstancngh IFY 9T
U0 Miasthy Diatr Botion Class LED BLR0T005 + BBAS5 Unitt sutitand~g) [T18) k04
{UISD femi-Anngal DrSation Class LSO 19, FO0AT6 + 18 M6, 148 Ut outitasding) IS0 10 5

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
[Expressed In United States Dollar)

ImveIrse et Income:
Interest s 25941 5
Tota! lveestrent Idame PRI a] ]
IxpEnses:
Management e 512,74%
Boanribunnss fees 450 AN
Custonan an su bead mi nesiraior s fees T 431
Profestonal fees &5, 732
Transher age-s foed 4,105
Agent company's fees 15,081
Truatee fees 15,0052
Regatcaton foes &N
T e res TR D
Teal Exgeridid L2ITI5%
ot I L N cone 171398
Realized and Unrealzed 6ol /[Losses]:
REiFeg gaba|inuei)
Irwest e in ey fites o nanp
FOrein curmenoy Trars ations &~ forward Tooe gn curency echage Coniracts 1,899,005
Met reslized gaine 1. ¥ 995
Chacge = pvealized sppoed atiaaNdepreciation)
IFWESEMETS i SeTunTes {2,483 808}
FONEis Curneny Dartactions. A% Bonwass 1o gn Curency eachasgs Contracts {1, ER9 467}
MET CRARRE in unfealned O precalon {37327

Mt rEalized and unfeal e insse

et decrease in net st resulsing from cperationn

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Incremue [Decrease] in Wet Asiets from:

Dperations
N e itmend indoe

Lridr 1713, 904

Net realined gaina 1,455 595
W Change in LA ralitng Srpreciatian [2873,275)
N1 SnChEai e N Nt AAeh esul g from aperrions 5%, 266
[Dfrrib utioer 1o Linith olders:
FPF Macunhly D ran Class (63, TER]
FPY Semisfnna) Distriostion Chass {300,075
LIS Rbomihly Dosarianion Chss [78,475]
P Sariminnual Db tion Cass (383, 668}
Toda! Dsiriouilons [R5, 460]
Caphal Traniaction:
L=ty g
FFY Moewthly Diarisoron Class {1,111 Uaina) 56,248
BPY Sermi-Annyal DAArsotan Cais {2,108 U] 195282
L Manihly Disfribuflon Class {211,505 Unfs] 213530
LS S e dinnual Diatrbution Cass {292,891 Units] 3,093,559
Lty regdeemed
FPY Moy D riston Class {26,655 Units) [2,396,8649)
FFY Semi-Annual Daariseton Chass {39,266 hin) [E515R56)
LS hlavthiy Diarisgtinn Class {65,521 Usini) |48, 456)
LIPS S e innial Datrbution Oass |2, 0609 635 Units] !I]‘M!] 2}
RBET LIRS € ) T A resdEng 1rom Capeal ransactiong. !:I':I"B]!.I:-Ht
Teital Daeoreass im MNet Asaets [ﬂ.ﬂl.ﬂ
et Assets:
Beganing o yeas BE.5 71840
Frie of yrar S0 GL0G5,456

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Cash flows from cperating acseitles:
BT SLNERS £ L T AReTS el Eag 1r0m 0 perarions (134 (755,286}

Acpestreents to reconcile the net imorease In net assets rewmlting from operations to met cash used Ini

operating acthites:
Purchide of irertnests {E2.516,566)
Prodeedi from sale and maturty of Irvestrents L0E12 a0
T A TTEA S AN [ CreTionl of SO i and dRODUNTL 0 COTHIFERE SED ONOEATION ARG ShOM TErm

IR {54, 75H]
Reatred iosses on nyesiments insecurites 54,080
Chatge 0 Lvealiped Cepreration on mesTments T 451, BOR
Chasge = prvealized Sepredation on farwasd fore gncurmency extasge contracky 1.1 410
Chanpe in Fueeti mnd Habilite s related 1o ops st
Dt i (ABEReSE Sctivable CERT
Deecrease in aocnied CUsHod am and s -adminstrator's fees {32,576
Devevand i accnoed profest onal fees 295)
Intrease (s stcrued tnadee fee 5,68
Irscrease (o accrued reg siration fees 2534
Dt i9 accroed mansgement fres (42,022}
Decrpie i sedfoed ditrisues foey (1% 107
Deecrease in accried gent company's fees {676]
InCrease i aicrued transher agent fees 7347
Inscresan [ gocrued other expenses |
et cash used in operating acthvites FLALT A
Cavh flows wied In Anancing actbities:
Proceeds from Uinis asued 5,505, kB
Payrne AL A LIAAG fedie med LIF005, 702}
[atributinad pald ta U Thalde [H25. 850
et cash provided by financing acthvit [23. 376, 204)
et decreae in cash and forelgn currency I ne0]
Cani and fore'gn currency ak beg=ming of year 1,106,253
Cash and forelgn currency at end of year usn ﬁ

The stcampanying nates Joe an integral part of these firancisl statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios
[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwize indicated)
IPY Monthly Y Semi-Annual USD Mty UISE Samd-Anssl

Dhrribution Ceds  Dhilenion Cass  Dhigibeton Cas Dloribudon Oasi
For the Year Enclad For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

2L Fs ZB 2021 Febiua 021 Fadb 28, T2z
MR At Wi, B i o [ GETE IFY 10045 LD 10040 UED 10.73
R FAE TR e 177 224 o35 04
Ned real medl and wnrealized loaey LELS] [LIE]] {35) [A5)
W GECTERSE i1 NeT avsets resultng from operations [FEET] [FRET] {141} [11h
L ciatributions [H20 (] {024] (0120
R Adaet Walue, enad alf yeas Ll AT AP F.746 LBD 006 AsD 1050
Teda! refurn [FEA (19 (a5l {1080
i IFy usm UsE
RathosSupnie mental cata
Mt asnets end of year (00s) AR T97 3626 BEL 3512 19,701
Ratin of Expeie bo sveragn et ST FEL 1.64% 1.58% 1.55%
katio of net ineestret income foaverage net
E ] 1.86%, .30 24TE 230

UCalculaned using average Linits ouistanaing for the year

The aecamparying nated bee ar integral part of thede firancis] statements.
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The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statements.
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prindipal %of Net
[ b gt Assets Falr Vi alus
FECED INCORSE SECURITRES (101 1h
UMITED STATES {100.1%)
ASAET-BACKE D SECURITIES. |E2.550)
AMrervative Loom Trust 70051 Oass LAT
[F.5] TOR5A5 5500 due D425/ 38 1% SD BO5.T1R
Adtwrrative Loon Trust 2007048 Claas 181
LA 30T 25 due SR/I510T o 550221
Aarium Hotel Porfslis Truwt 381 TATRM Qanid £
(£ FER N ] F16% dur 12015/ 850003 ol 9,003
Sncor Coimemeercil Morgsee 2009-CR56 Tust il O
LD Hi el 2.81% due 00 15,6102 02 Tk
BANK J0T7ANE (o A
LSl 550,340 140 dhaw 05 15/50/% ] 58,775
A bl 110G Ol A
LA LA 0. RS dae 87/ 158018 ol S50
AN 012N LD Olaria 04
LsD LBED,L3] 0.73% due DR/ 150610 o T9041
Brk 2019-B8C19 Clans &5
LA LEE: o] Ak due S0/ 15/61 L 9,750
BANK J03C-2805 (s AS
LSk B.000 2B due DL 1563 oo 2425
2ACNS IDIETALL Mongage Tst s F
L&D 100,000 3350 due 0/ 15,/ 2712 L 9,008
Bear Stmare AAM Tront 2007-1 Haus 241
LBk 316,166 2B due [ A5N o5 ILTRE
Bear Stearees Asset Aocked Seowities | Trust 2007-HE6 O 141
LA FLERF-] 1AM due CR/I5T0 1l pEako
Benrschrmawk: F00-0 1% Mortgage Trunt Cma 88
LSD 99,143 1 TEN dhae 09/ 15/5318 02 113,354
Sendhrark 2020- 103 Morigeage Trust Tass 54
£ 1] 2,538,560 CL7% due D15/ @S a2 57,796
800 Trung 007 50CT Chma
L&D 42411 218 due 07115/ 34 102 0.l 42 504
2 e J0IWELCT Cless B
LA 104558 136 due 015/ B01L12 12 104445
& Truss 2009-0011 Oms E
(¥ 3] 135,000 3940 due 12, 79/aL A o3 133,933
3 Triss J019-00011 ks X3
[F.5] 5,138,600 0.18% dwe 12094 108 L S0,
Carringion Morigage Loan Trund Series J008-5 04 Clam 23
[F-1: FA5957 O dar D05 AE HE 515380
T3 20170 Nt Trusst Class XA
LsD LAEEIT L. 7%, deae 05, 105010 ol T9,658
CROSE Courumencil Mort page Toust 201 7T-C8 (s K&
LSl L3460 1B due 05 15/5000 ol 50,304
CHL Meortgage Pas Thiough Truns 3006045 Class 241
[F.5] ThA 290 CLEIH due 425/ 8510 11 BEATR
Citigromp Commercal Morigage Trend POLE-GE10 Claws N4
LED 201,.5M 2140 due I8 10,078 gl 59,160
Citigr o Covmaraer cial Meorigage Trunt B0 155035 Class XA
(£ Pk L 0.78% dur 11/10M48'% ol 43,847
it grosp Comimerolal Moripage Trest 2007-0T O XA
LD M5ANE 111% due G/ 14,5018 1=} 19,6807
Citigroog Commercal Morigape Troit BO0885 Claai F
LsD 100,000 3500 diw 12/ 10HL1US ] S2.053
Ctigrosp Cormineroial Maorigage Trost 2000-555 Claaa F
L&k 100,000 355 due 11 IGMIADE 0. T3
NG 2019-FLY Lid. Clesis A5
LsD 100000 1.6E% dus 08/I0/35113 o3 10GESE
0N 0L 300509 Mortgape Trust O X4
LA 131851 CLEE due §7,/ 10,4518 g EL AT
COWN BELE-LOE Wortgige Trunt Ol 8
LsD L 389 655 1.39% due 0111086 oo 13,513
O B0 5 LOT L Miorigage Tt Class KA
L&D 2380670 0.69% dwe 07/ 10,488 a1 LA
[SAIL 20L0-C18 Ceamimertial Morigage Tridl Cliss X4
L&k LRI LGS deoe 12155218 0.l #9554
CEE MR- NET Clans &
LA 1050600 2.3 dur CR/ 1511715 02 10T ABE



DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
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February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prindpal % of Nt
[ I gt Asseis Falr Valuse
FIECED INCORSE SECLIRITRES (L1, 1% [continued)
UITED STATES {10015 [eartinud]
ASSETBACKED SECURITIES [GE.5%) [continui]
CEMAE Trust 300 TL5TE (R
1] 51,000 3239 dus D051 0.1% 50,73
CEWE Tirust 201 T-15TW (hoen B
LSD 61,000 3338 due D45/ ol 60,521
CSVC Trust 200 T-15TE (his £
[F.5] A9,000 33 due D4/8331008 o 7067
CHWE Trust 301 T8 Clasn il
LA TR0 0, 00% drae $A 0533 A08 1=} ™
SN Trust 300 TL5TH (i XBOP
LsD 2,553,000 0.00%, deae D405, 1008 oo 26
JALA% 2017-DRAL Morgages Tustdba
LA Hid e el 153 due L0/ 16141218 12 100 40
Diegrhuryeen Rassicdenatiol Morsgage Trust 06174 (o A3
[F.5] 48,117 283 due 12,76/ 85159 L 48,164
Evantas Capital Corp. 2019-2507 13d, Class &
LA 6487 111% due 51 15/ B0 ol 15407
Enmted Sutoimcbade Regeivables Tt 30011 Class O
(R 50000 Lo due 11016/0% o4 248910
Fannee Miae REMICS 2018-33 Class &
LD L1 .00 e 0525 M0 14 1,205,801
FRINGA TN Class BT
LSl FELEE Rk 3,008, dhaw I5/7504 43 2,658,903
FRINLA REWICS Class &T
[F.5] 1,500,000 2.50% dwe 122548 5 1,528,558
Fontsinetdeeg Mismi Beach Trot 2009FALU Clrs £
1] 85,000 1964 due 12/ 10351208 o.e 85,97
Freddie Wac Miskifardy Struchered Pass Thiough Cerificates Claas A2
LA 100 173w due 072555 i3 1551
Fredihe Mg BERACS 031 Ol 50
LSk TI0585 5 PR due 07/ 1500310 12 750,386
Fiwdde M SEROCS Chas BT
[F.5] e AN 1.00% e 041544 63 1,890, 3056
GALA Adgtion Lid, (e &
1.1+ 354353 L0F dae L2154 Ty MEIZE
Govermement National Maorigage daaociation Class IO
UsD 1,799,000 1.00% dhwe 05,/ 166318 02 162,271
LA BT 11 due SR/ 16/ 621N a3 15863
Grmee Trust JORDGACE Olass O
(£ 93,000 2.68% dus 12N1GM ol 9,806
Greas Wil Tt 3515-WOLF (ina £
LD 101,000 100 de 1315711002 02 p oA o]
G "Wl Truwt JOTRAWOLF Chna F
LsD 101000 J 240 dhaw 12115251003 o3 S5.845
G5 Momgage Securities Corp. Trust 300095000 (s E
[F.1+] [l va] .80 due O 1551002 0. TLE
G5 Mormgage Securities Trus 20156078 Clads X4
UsD 1,847,196 CLOSH dus 02,/ 10,881 oe 47,370
G5 Morgage Securithes Trust 2017656 Class X4,
LA Lol F 100 due 05/ 10,508 L A7 006
G5 Morgage Securitien Truwt J017-G57 Claws X4
LSk H0a15 1.13% e G 105000 ol 53,588
05 Momgage Seourities Trist 300186509 Clas C
1. 5] 200,000 4360 de 00/ 10,5119 o4 218218
&% Morigage Seounitien Trunt 2030-G045 o X4
L&k L7458 0,67 doe 10195319 0. EL5IT
HPLY Tt 3015507 Claan F
LA A1383 136w due 11015/ W= ol TS
15, Sorgan Chire Comercial Mortpage Secusitie Trus 20195008 Olaw ©
LSD 120,000 LTTH due 07/ 15/ 351003 02 119,097
Jmnosin CLO X1 Lod, Obess A2
£, 1+] Sonnn LATH due S35,/ 1002 s SA515
Jeruey Wike"y Funding (lna A3
L&D R50,000 A AV due 0155009 L ) RS0
Ty b Fumndiing LLC 2017 LA Claqz A2
sk FLARL ) AL dhwe £7,/20718 o4 L vl k

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
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February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prindpal % of Nt
[ I gt Asseis Falr Valuse
FIECED INCORSE SECLIRITRES (L1, 1% [continuedy
UITED STATES {100 19 [eavitinued]
ASSETBACKED SECURITIES [GE.5%) [continui]
IF Mergan (hase Comrmercial Mergage Seoatdes Cop. 3 TFUID O B
1] 3,115 2.01% dus DENSAQILE T T ] 3,107
18 Maongan Thase Commevoial Morigape Seomices Trst 2014000 Class X4
LSD 2,311,190 1.71% dus G715 ol 15,456
1P Mangen Chase Commercial Morgage Seosises Trast 2006073 Oas B
[F.5] 100,000 1800 dhwe GR) 154818 02 105447
17 Migrgan Chawe Commencial Mortigage Seoaices Tt 2018-LAG o &
LA 54,75 L11% dur D150 02 ol 54,752
1P Mengn Chuse Cermmmercial Merlgage Seoaaises Tt 20 UESPT Cles FRX
LsD 67,000 536 dus 07053108 ol E7.526
17 Mongan Chave Commeroial Mortgage Seoaises Tt 20300005 (las £
LA Hid e el LR dae 120080 L LR
JEAARA Cormmaerclal Mortgape Securities Trons 308 5-CH Oma £
[F.5] 9,000 4158 due 1G5/ @in L S2E5Y
158 AR Cormmercial Mortgage Securfies Tront 2005-CX0 Gl 14
[1.3:] L 1.21% due 11158818 ol 19,958
JFAALA Cormirendal Morpage Seomitee Trust 30090008 Olass 45
(R 11300 JAlNdus 1L NRIN o3 133 567
JENADA Cormumendial Morigage Seomites Trost 20200077 Clas A
LD 107,000 1 dee 05105018 02 113818
JEAAN Cornmendal Morpage Secuitien Truw! JEA0C0AT Claw X8
LSl FLTAZE 1BEM, dhaw 05/13/53/% o3 10L 678
Legacy Morgage dsset Tiust F00O0G5 (o AL
[F.5] ARA556 3250 dwe G215 01AIE i A685,190
Leng Beach Mergape Loan Tiust 30069 Dass 243
1] 1,554,503 CLEIN due 161253510 11 673,691
WUASTR dsset Sacked Securities Trust 2007-HEL (s &3
LA LB G due S5,/25/ 3710 iR 1217488
Waorpan Senkey Dok of Sereica Merrill Dymch Truwt 3004000 Claw XA
LSk L0660 1000 due 12158470 oo 19,723
Norgan Sanley Capitad | 2007 HAD Os ©
[F.5] 100,000 420 dwe 1215508 02 108,022
Morgan Sandey Copltal | Trost 300E-UB11 Class XA
1.1+ L1t A4 5L deoe SR 150 0. E9,61
Morgan Sanbey Caphial | Trust 20016-U8513 Class X8,
UsD LFIEATS 0% due 12/1545'8 oa 15,905
Morpan Ssanbey Copital | Trust BOLT-H1 Clans X4
LSD 966,762 AT due 05/ 15/5018 ot 55,556
Morgan Sanley Copital | Tust 200913 (s AS
£ 1] 91,000 a9 due 11/15/52 a2 6T
Morgan Sanbey Capital | Trust D010-L8 (s 14
L&D 1R 545 QLB due 111155019 0.l A
MDD 2019:MARK Mertgage Trust Qs &
LBk 185000 293 due 12155518 23 174,541
Hatbda Comrercal Mortpmpe Securides Tt 300-30AE flna B
LSD 113,000 3755 du 12153813 o2 110,947
Dption One Momgage Lo Trat 20076 Cleas 141
[F.5] 1,085,821 0308 due 7/252710 R 1,061,340
0T Creclit Rk Trons fer Tt 200928 Claas &
[F-1:] £12201 2.RE due 1513710 18 B2
FAPM 015651 Cladi Al
LsD 489354 1A due 1035/ F0I0 oE 495785
RPN 20201 LLC Clasx A1
LA Ani2ad 2.8 due SIS 1AIE o ARLART
FAA JERDS U Cls A2
1.2 477118 10 due 1125551804 o2 L]
B0 Sewien M06-0E010 Trunst Clans 123
L&D SA2ATT E.00 dur 007515 o 540,308
AL Sawien PIOTOHS Toust Clais 401
(£ L5 807 0,355 dar 05753710 nE 505354

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)

February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prindpal % of Nt
[ I gt Asseis Falr Valuse
FIECED INCORSE SECLIRITRES (L1, 1% [continuedy
UHITED STATES {100 1% [ovtinusd]
ASSETBACKED SECURITIES [GE.5%) [continui]
RASE Seviws J00TEMRE Tz Class A13
[ E85,74% LU due QL5 10 [V, 0F] B372a7
Sesadeniial dasen Seourtiratioan Trust 2008-89C 0 Clas &6
LSD L 759,071 ED due D0135/56 15 218574
Rioadyn Portioko Toust 30175065 Oass A
[1.3] 55455 194 due (6152310 0.1 55453
Spashym Portdolio Tress 0173048 Claas 8
LA G545 1.24% due D502 ol 35,Ta¥
5o Prodessaonal Lean Program 30178 W0 Class B
LsD o000 389 daw 11/ IEM0E oE 519424
St Prodessinnal Loan Pmgram 2017-2 LLC Class €
LA Fil ] A1 e 113400 a4 F b
Sgrinaghea] Fonding Tt 101 T-44 Cla &
%, 0] 123371 26E% due 07/ 153010 032 133,758
Spriie 20071 L, Olass &
LA ELT ] 4250 due 12/15/105 a3 168597
Spruce HEll Morgage Loon Trus 20305H1 Class MY
(R 0000 2% dus DLGE/ A oE S0EESE
Stk nfrsruchre s LLE Oass 42
LD 0000 15600 dae CRSISMA10 ¥ Ltk
Smrwond Mortpage Revidertiol Toust JOURNCD Claw A2
LSl 307358 421 daw LOMIS AN os ERLE L]
Stzrwond Morgage Sesadential Toust J0LE W0 (s A
(1.2 ok L] ABEW due L0/ 25 MBI LY 16809
Steebe Cresk CLOJ01E-L L1l Class AR
[ 500,000 1340 due D5 15/3L 103 o= #533,160
Tharslduon Hotel Portfolo Truss 2018-THIT Class £
LA 240 LAk due 1110/ B00= e FRird
THIL Credit Wind Bover 2008-1 0o Lid. Clana B
LSk 500,000 1A due 07,15/ 300002 o2 sopar
UBS Comimercial Modigage Treat 201701 Class X4
[F.5] 1061 004 1.52%, dwe 06/ 15,/50/8 L TI.E
Uit Commercial Morigage Trent 2017-C3 Cloua A
1.1+ 100,000 A0 o CR 15500 63 156,718
uis Commercial Mortgage Trest 201703 Class X4
LsD 2,358,778 L. 10% dease D8 15,/50'% o3 132404
RSBl Coarersarciol Wortgoge Touyt 201305 Class X3
1] 1E54,073 £L07% due D3 108510 0o 6033
WEAT JCISNPLE LLC Chas A1
£ 1] 193,706 157% due 11725/ @ a3 194,133
Wericrens Opportunisy Loan Tt J019-580F Oas &1
L&D 095682 107 due D/I5 Y LY JICASR
e Seuritieation Trust 202 181 s ML
LBk o050 23400 due 10/25/018 oz 5554
fislo BOL0-3 Truw Oma W1
(¥ 3] L575.000 3,268 due 11/35/541A1% 25 1,583,149
LT U000 LILC Ol ALA
[F.5] 188884 129 dwe B/ 35501000 03 189558
‘Wigshingion Miytgal Morigage Pe-Theough Certificates WLALT Serie J00T-2
Tiunt Tl LA1
LSk 479,605 T.00r o CA3537 o4 IMRES
‘Wadhingion Mitural Bvet-3acked Certilicates. WMALS Series 2006:HE Thist
Class 1,
LA ALY bl CLETH due S/I5/ WG 13 MeI5R
Wl P Corermsrcial Mortgoge Trunt 3016033 Class ¥4
[F.5] ThOcat LaM due §3/15/5818 L L]
‘el Fargo Comerercial Mortgege Trust 2007-000 Class X4
LED EHE R 1009 deaw 07 155018 0.l 45,380
Wellts P Cosmermscial Mortgoge Trust 2019054 Class ¥4
(£ LB, LET 0.8 dur 127155210 ol 91,567
‘Wiells Fargo Commerercial Wortgage Trost 2030-0%6 Class 3
LD 104,000 175 doe 0/ 15,5018 02 114509
‘Wielly Fargo Morgage Badied Securitien FO0EAR 14 Tront Class 241
LsD 571801 2.7 due 10/35/% L 543 966
GOVERRMENT DOND (6.5}
WS, Trewnwary Bond
LSk 2000000 LEI e 1101550 9 1,750,313

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)

February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prirnicipal %of Net
[ I gt Asseis Falr Valuse
FOOED INCORE SECURITIES (101, L% |continuedy
UMITED STATES {10415 [eentinued]
GOVERMMENT BOMDS [6.9%) | eontinusd)
LD E00,000 1 REW, chor B2/ 15/5L 09 LSD 550,231
LS. Trearwary Note
] 1100000 0.63% dee 09/15730 1 1,549,719
TOTAL GOVERMMENT BOKDS 4,753,063
MACHTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (31.7%)
i e Fool
LD 245033 2,000 chae 11/OL M0 04 5024
8. SA6LIT 2.000 due 10,/0L/50 14 L1160
[F.0.] 3)0050,500 ALY dae 10100 LR L11R30%
LD L0000 L4 dueOL/0LW 5 1,575,664
L&D AATLASD a8 due 11008 &7 4,109, M1
LAD A5 501 L0 dhae 11000048 12 TLRATE
LsD 5EAD0 100 due ST/0L147 o8 583,937
LD LAMETY  3.50% dee OLAOLME 15 1,5TE,194
LD LEBASIT 400 due SOLMT 13 2,062,791
Frwcdle Mo Gold ool
8.5 P EERC ] L0t due 11000580 EE 1,500,043
1] 997 AR 155, due SH/0L145 17 4,085,100
LED 250573 150, chue 11 /OLME 04 73399
Fredde Wac Aol
L&D S80,141 2000 dwe 11AILMO 18 100082
LsD 954504 2.00% due 10/0L/50 1E 8557149
1.+ 26472 .00 due ST/OLIET 14 BEZITD
TOTAL MORTGAGE -BACHED SECURITIES LR RETS
TOTAL UNITED STATES 1,718,701
TOTAL FIMED INCOME SECURITIES [Cowt USDI 63,543, 669) £2,71370
TOTAL INVESTIVEMTS | Conit USD 63,548,664] WLI%  USD 62,718,701
LIATIITIES IN (DICESS OF CASH AND OTHER ASSETS [ ] [BEE, 265
MET ASSETS. 10008 LED £3,055 436

{1] Floating Rute o of February 28, X001,

{¥] 1444 Seowity « Secwily eosng? roen regrtiation oader D345 of the Seomite A of 1931 These wourities sray be nesold in
wEnE et Trom regstaton, tvpecally oo gEliled insunitionsl bayers. Unbess ctharwiss indicebed, thess weosities ane it
wonskdered fo be Mgad.

{¥] Vaiokie Aate oo of Pelrusey H, 3001

8] Step Rete ool Felruary 3, 2021,

P Monthly Divtribution Clis Forward Fereign Currency Exchangs Contrasti

Nk Unrea liced

Kotional Semlemant IWothom sl Unrealized ‘Unrealized wm

Buy  Counterparty Amunt  Dete Sell ATt Appreciation  (Degeeciation]  [Deprecinion]
Y Browe Broshers Havomen & Co, 25606 DIFINANL s {eddp  USD - sk {1} =2 fiF
BY cmea ABLEOGAID  GAAOMRONT LR 14554581 = (4.508) {4,508
usl CIMPeR ALATR oW Py LLE e ] ] - foe]
us3 CmPa 47419 037302001 i1 {5006 8Lk 20 0

USD LT S paSeT) 1D (AT

Y Seenl-dnnual Diseribartion Class Ferward Forelpn Corrency Exchangs Comtract

Kt Unrealized

Kotlonal  Settlement Katicnal Unreslized Unreslized  Apprecistion

Buy Coumsrparty ______ Amcunt Dste Sl Amownt  Appreclation {Deprechtion) (Oepreclation]
B Brows Brothen Harrimon & Oe [t TE TR [F15] 1) {0 -3
Y Brows Broshers Harriman & Co. 175405 03001 iR {16560 = 14} L]
FY CTFa LBESMIEIF DIFILA0IL {8.17) {36,550, 260 - {354,049} [ELCRE LT
USD  Brows Brothers Harrimon & Ca 9227 GRA0MEL ¥ EDITCH 136 136
USD  Beoew Brothers Haivioen & e e L o b T P {143,515, 7alp TE5m 1,578
Usd COmPa Lo B ik T i " { BB 543, 324h 1335 = 7035
14,137 {8050 LSS {RMLI3L)

* & pevo balance represancs noundieg bo bess dhan U0 050,

Curnency legend
Iy loparwse Yen
ush U5 Gollar

The stcampanying nates Joe an integral part of these firancisl statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

CRGAMIZATION

Doubdeling Total Roturn Fund [the “Furd®™] & a senes trust of the Mikdio AM Offshore Fungs, an open-enced urit tust
establisked by 3 supplemental trust deosd dated February 8 2017 [the “Supplemental Trust Deec™], under the laws of the
Cayman klands. Nikko AM Offshore Furds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2002 [the "Master
Trust Deed”), under the bws of the Cayman Idlands and i licensed with the Caymar Islands Maretary Autharity pursuant
1o spction 4 1]{a) of the Mutual Furds At (2021 Revision), The Furd commenced aperations on Marck 30, 2017,

The Fune's assets ane maraged on a day to ¢ay bask by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited [the “Marager®). The Manager
delegates irvestmert maragemert duties to Nkko Asset Managemert Co., Ltd, [the “lreestment Manages™). The
Ipvestmirt Marager delegated investment manigement cuties to DoubleLine Capital LP, (the =Sub-Investrmert Manager).
The acministration of the Fund i delegated ta Brown Brathers Harriman & Co. [the “Custadian™ and “Sub-Administratar”),
& limited partnership oqganined vnger the Liws of thae State of New York,

TEé& irvestient ahjective of the Fund B 1o dckidae b mid 0o lasg bedm BaEal fetunn thiough ircome Snd A pital bpareciation.
Urder rormal cecumstances, the Series Trust shall invest over 50% of @5 nef assets in residential ang commercial
martage-backed wecuritios, Jnively allacated BETween AREADY ARG REN-BEECOY SECUrITHS.

Thise imvesuments may include mortgage-backed securities aof ary maturity o Type, including those guaraneed by, or
secwned by collaberal that s guarartend by, the Urited $tates Gowerrment, its agencies, instrumertalities or sponsonec
carparations, and privately wed mongige-backed teturities rated ot the time of purchase AaJ ar Righer by Moaody's ar
Ad ar higher by S&F or of an eguivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization {“HESRO")
that ks been recognized by the LS, Securities and Dxchange CommBdon of unrdbed Secudities TR ane determined by the
Irvestmart Manager or its delegates to be of comparable guality, Trese investrents ako clude, among others, LS.
Goverrment martgage pass-thraugh securities, collateralized mongage ebligations, mulicliss possthrogh securiies,
private mortgage pass-through seourities.

The Senes Trust may also invest in shart term imeestments, such as notes ssuvee by U S, Government agencies, and bands,
debt tecuritios ard other foed income i nstrumerts ued by LS, Gosvermmental or privite-S6e1ar @ntitied, or other Jitet-
backed cbligations, call I loar chbigations, ard oblgathors of the US. Gowernment ame Rs agenches,
iU E AT | e e Lpantaied COFBOTItaRL,

The Series Trust may invest in bands of any credit quality, includirg thase that ane at the time of irvestment unrated or
rated 88+ ar kower by SEF or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an sguivalent mting by any other NRSRO. Bonds and fised
income irstruments rated Below irvestmert grace, of such instruments that are unrated ded determiced by the
Irvestmaet Manager of s delegates 1o ke of comparable guality, am high yhele, Righ risk bones, commanly krawn as jurk
bords’. The Series Trust may invest up ta a third of its ret assets in junk bards, bank ksans and assigrments that are either
rated bolow Investment grade or are unratnd but determined by the Investment Marager ar its celegates 1o be of
comparable qualiy, and credit default sevaps of companies in the high yield universe.

Thae Series Trust eay irwvest 3 portion of B5 net assets i irverse flaater securities and ipterest-only and prircipal-asly
ST LrRies.

Urder the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deeo, FirssCaribbean Interratiora] Back and Trust
Company [Cayman) Limited {formerdy CIBC Bark and Trust Company (Caymar] Limited vp to March 12, 3020] [the
Trustee” and the “Administratar™) & named s Trustee of the Furd.

The Maragoer appointed Mgsubishi UF) Morganr Staedey PB Socunitees Co,, Lt {formeddy Minsubishi UFI Margar Stanbey
Securities Co., Ltd.] 1o aet a4 Agent Compary [the “Agent Compary™] snd the Manager appairted Mtwubishi UF] Morgan
Stankey PB Securities Co., Lt [formerly Mitsublshi UF) Margan Stanbey Securities Co, Lie,) and SMEBC Trust Bank Lig, o act
as Distributars {the “Distributors™] of Units in Japan.

SUMPMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES

The Fund & an Investment Company that follows the accounting and repomting guidance in FASE Accounting Stancands
Codification 946,

Uise of Estimotes

The sccomparying financis statemerts bave bear prepared in scoardance with acourting principles gererally sccepted in
the United States of America [“ULS. GAART). The preparation of financla| statements im accordance with U5, GAAR requines
thie Furd's maragemint 1o make estimates and Jssumptions thay aifect the repomed amousts of sets and labigies and
distlotured of contingent addets and labiltied at the date of the financil statemerts and the reparted amawnts of
rEVERLES and Rapirses during the repoting pericd, Actual resuls, ircluding the witimate ameurt realized upon the sak of
fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differenoes may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUBMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continised)

Basls of Accounting

Seourity and contractual transactions are reconded on 3 tradefcontract-date basks. Interest income s recorded on an
eMective yiekd basi, set of Jey pplicable withhalding tax, 1ATeredt expenid 3nd clhber cxpendes ane Moorded on 3n acerual
basis. Realited gairs and losses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
soki or covernd, Charges in the valuation of irvestmerts ane recorded in the Statement of Operations 38 unnealized
appreciation or cepreciation.

Woluation of favestments

Bandy ard other debt decuritied, imchuging restricted securities [other than dhom-term obligations but ircluding Boed
ksues] are fair valued an their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of valuations furniskad by 3 pricing service, use of which bas been app by Th Ir T Manager, or if nosake
has occurned, the bic price on the valuation date a5 proviced by brobers who are maroet makers in the seourities. All debt
secunies with bess thas 12 manths te maturity date, in prirciple shall be fair valued using an amonized cost effected by an
effective yicld accumulatedfamartization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparison with
Market prices 34 requined,

Ir Becondamo with the autkaritative guidance on fair valut measurements and cuclosures under US. GAAP, the Fund
discloses the fair value of its investmerts in a bierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techrigues used to measure
the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priovity to valuations bated upon unadjusted guoted prices in active markets
for ientical assets or Babilities {Level 1 measurement] arc the lowest priority to valuations based upon unobservable
inputs that are sigrificant 10 the valustion (Level 3 measurements]. The guidanoe estabishes three levals of the fair value
higranchy a5 follows

# Lewel 1 - Irputt that reflect unadjuated guated prices i ative markets for identica] ievestmerts that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measuremert date;

. Lewel 2 - |Pputs other than guated prices that are significart and observable for the asiet or liabdRy either
clirectly or indirectly, including imputs in markets that ame not considered to be acthe;

*  Lewel 3 - Irputs that are significent ard unobiervable.

IFputs are used i applyicg the varmais valuation wechrigues and brosdly refor 1o the sidumptiors that madet pameipants
use to make valuation decikiors, including assumptions about risk, Irputs may include price information, specific and broad
oredit caty, llguidity statitics, and other factars. A finarcial instrumert’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based upor
the lowest level of any irput that is significart to the fair value messuremert. Howewver, the cetermination of what
carstitutes “observable™ requires sigrdficart judgment by the Investmert Marager. The Investment Marager corsiders
obsereable data to b market data which i readily available, regularly distributed or updannd, reliable and veriflable, not
propietany, and provided by independert seurces tRat Bre dctivily irvaléed in the relevant market. The categarization of a
funarcial iestrument withim the hirarchy i basec upan the pricing transparency of the instrement and does rot recessanly
carrespond ta the Investment Manager's perceived sk of that instrument.

Invesemerts whase values are Based on the quoted market prices in 3ctie markets, and therefone classified within Level 1,
would include actively taded eguities, certain WS, goverrment ard sovensign obligations, and certain asset-backed
socurties ard eollateralized martgage abligatiors. The [evestrment Marsger would not sdjvet the guated price for suek
Instrummets, aven in situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could reasarably impact the quoted price

IFitniirtd that tedde in mbrketd that bré fal cocdidered 10 b Sctive, But are valued Baded af quated marker priced,
dealer g uotations or altornathe pricierg sources suppored by abservabln inputs ane classifind within Level 2, Those include
IVEST RN ErGE bt SeCurithes, short-tenm Fvestments and fanvard forign cunency exchange contiacts and may ako
include cortain asset-bacimd secwrities and colliteralzed martgage oblgatiors. Az Level 2 imvestments irclude positions
that are rot traced in active markets ardfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiguidity andfor non-transferabilty, which are gererally based on available market irformatian.

Investmeets classified within Level 3 have significart unobservable inputs. as they would trade irfrequently, Level 3

insrumenTs wouks inglude cortin Jset-backed wurities anc collneralized mangape obligations. As observable prces are
not available for those seourities, the Fung woult use valuation tochniguees to denkie the fair value,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUBMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES [continised)

Viluation af favestanents feantinued]
Tk inputs or methooology used for valuing securities are not recessanily an indication of the risk assoclted with investing
in thase secy rities,

The fallawirg table prodestd the firancial irdtruments carmsd or the Stmement of Adtetd and Liabilneed by chption and by
evel within the waluatior hierarchy as of February 28, 2021, Further classifications of the firarclal instruments are
presected in the Portfolio of Irvestmerts. There were ra trarsfers between kevels during the year.

Aazets at Falr Value Fair Vahee at
Lirvell L Lirvll 2 Lircal 5 Fakruary X8, 2001
Faoed Incorme s = [T RN [T = [T N N TN ]
Forward Fooeign Currency
Faot e COALSREN - 16, 066 - b6 DEE
Tatal [ = [T [FRIINT] [ = [T [FRFTNT]
Liatilitley 2% Falr Valoe Falr W ahas at
Ll L L 2 Lol 3 Fabeuary 28, 2021
Ferward Fosegh Cussenty
Exthange Casteacti [1AE] = L] FUS65 S0 = [11E] A%, 565
Taital [0 - sl I8 565 [T - usD A58, 565
Foreign Curmendy Transiation

Aszets and labilities held in currencies other tham United States Dollar {(SUSD® or the “Functional Currency®™) are translated
o the Furctional Currensy ag the rate of wechange prevailing ag tha firancial stagement cate, Ircome and CEPEAES are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the cate an which the ircome or expense i ircurred. Realzed and
urrealived gaind snd ladted Jrisieg on farign curresey trafLactiont are included in the Statement of Operations in the
periad in which they occwr.

The Fund coos not kolate that portion of the results of operatiors resutting from changes in foreign excharge rates on
investments from the flectuations arisieg from changes I marker prices of securiios beld. Sueh fluctuatiors ane mcluded
with the net realized and unrealized gair or loss from investments.

Income Toxes

Urnder the current Liws of the Caymar ldancs, there are ro incomes, withholdieg, capital gairs or other taxes pavable by
thit Furg, bn civtaln juriscictions ather thar the Cayman Islands, forelgn tanes may be withhekd a1 source on dividenss and
interesr recoiied by the Fund. Capital paies cerived by the Fund in such jurscictions generally will be exempt fram foneign
income or withhalktieg tawes at source, The Fund irtencs to corduct its affalrs such that & will rot be subject to ircome tax
in any jurisdictior. As a result, ro provision for income taxes kas been made in the finarcial statements. Unithalders may
be taxed on their proportorate share of the Fund's tax bass income based on their indiwidwal circumstanoes.

The Fund follows the authoratke guidarce or accourting for ard disclosure of uncertainty bn tax posiiors (Financial
Accourting Standands Board [“FASE®) - Accowunting Stancards Codification 7a0], which reguires the Manager to determine
whether 3 tax position of the Fund |5 more likely than ror to be sustained upor examiration by the applcable taxing
autharity, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based an the technical merits af the pasition.
For tax positiors mesting the mare Biely thar nat threskolc, the tax berefit recogrized in the financial satemerts is
recuced by the lanpest benefit that hat a greater thar fifty percent likelirood of beirg realited wpan LRimate settlement
with the relevant taxing avthority, The Marager has determinee that there s smicimal or o effect on the financial
statements being under this avtheritative guicance.

Forward Forgign Currency Exchenge Contracts

Thae Furg may efter inte farward foreige currerey eXchangn contracts 1o bodge against foreige currercy exchange rate
riiks on all ar 3 panion af rac-USD deramicated investments or far efficiert portfalic maragement purposes. When
eetering inte a forward foreign curency exchange coetract, the Fund agrees o receive of delver a fooed quantity of
fareign currency for ar agreed-upon price an an agresd futune cate. These contracts are valued caily, and the Fund's net
eculty themie, mpreserting wnrealzed appreclationfideprecution) ar the cortracts as measured by the differerce
between the farwand foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the cantracts and the foraard rates atthe
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Forward Forsign Cormendy Exchange Controcts frontiawed)
reparting date, it included in the Statement of Assers and Liabilities. Realized and uoreakiped gaics and botbet are ncluded
in ke Statemert of Operations.

These irstruments irvobe market risk, credit risk, or both kirds of risks, in excess of the amount recogrioed in the
Stavemert of Adtets and Lhbilities. Rigks arise from the potdible inability of counterparties 1o meet the terms of their
cartracts and from movement in currency and secunities walues and irterest rates. bn addition to the Class kewel bedging,
the Fumd Fad realized boss of USD 50051 or 12 forward fareign cummency exchinge cortracts during the year with ar
average notioral of S0 62,611 and an average term to maturity of 9 days. The Furd bad net realized gain of USD 217,243
o A3 farward farsigh currency exihanpe contracts haks ot the JFY Morthly Databition Cliss Hedped level during the yoar
with an average notional of S0 2945 465 and an average term to maturity of 24 days. The Fund ako bad realized gain of
USE 1,281,330 an 35 farward fareign currency excharge contracts held ag the IPY Semi-Annval Distribution Class Hedged
leveel during the year with ar awerage notional of WSD 2,852,825 and an average term to maturity of 24 days.

While all er substantially all of the assets of the Fune may be held i U5 Dallars, it is irtenced far the Furd to enter into
hedgirg arrargements for the Berefit of IFY Marthly Dtrbution Class Units and IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
which are denaminated in Yen, Those arargemarts will be to becge against acwerse movements of the currency of
denomiration of the imvestmerts in the Series Trust relative to Yen. Any profits, gairs, losses, costs, ircome and
nxpend fture associated with such hecdgirg arrangements will be boree by cack class.

For the year enged Febroary 28, 3021 the rotienal exposure on the JFY Monthly Distibugion Class Unins ang JFY Semi-
Annual Distribution Class Units forward cunmrency exchange contracts approximated the average net assets for each class
being met lorg JPY ame shor USD, Open cortracts at wear and are cisclosee i the Portfolo of Investments

Cauh ond Fareign Currency
LCash and fareign currency comprises all currercy beld with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and avernight and ather short

term placements with ather fiearcial iestiutions,
UNITS

The mit adsetd of the Furd sne divided irto JPY Manthly Distribution Class Units, |PY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
UsSE Mantkly DEtabutiar Lass Urits ame UED Semi-Annual Distrbution Class Urnits. The Urits are derominated in Uried
Sttt Dollar ard lapanese Yoo, IFY Mosthly Dewabution Class Usits, IPY Semd-Aenual Distribution Cliss Unims, USD
Muontkly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi Arnual Distribution Class Units are available to an eligible investor who s
any pertan, corparation ar entity whick i nat {i} 2 citizen or resident of the LS., 5 padteerihip arganized or éxisting in the
U5, or any carparation, trust or ather entity orgarized under the laws of or existing im the US; [ii] persor or entity resident
ar gamiciled in tRe Cayman Blands (excluding any objedt of 2 charitable Drust o power Or an exempbed of Ron-resicert
Cayman klands company); (i) unable 1o subscribe for or hald Units without vielatieg applicable liws, or (] 2 custadian,
REFIfeE, oF Trugtee fﬁl‘ﬂl"'p EErAan, COrparktion o entity cescribad in [ oo i) sbove.

The Maraper may determine ta issue ane or mone clisses of Units of the Fund without prior natice ta or written consent of
the Unitholders
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LINITS {continued)

Al af the ret assets attributable to JPY Marthly Distribution Class Units, 1BY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
USD Mosthly Distribution Class Units ard USD Semi-fnrual Distdbution Class Wnits, are bebd by two Unithalders.

WY Monthly PV Semi-Amessal  USDMonthly  USD Semi-Annual
Distribytion Clasy  Divribution Gass  Distribution Gass - Dlstribetion Class Total Furd

Bslance 81 Februky 2%, MO0 WD GREQASE  URD ERIIOGED  USD  L52R0MF LSO AROFSTIS  USD BASTEASD
Susacrptions durisg the year 55,248, 195,262 2,035,375 1,093,559 5,524,465
Rege=nptianns guring the yea (2. 396, 868) [3.E15856] B4R 485 {21, 796.502) {26,438,123)
Distributions (53,238 (300,075 (TRATI) [EETEr (&5, 460}
et decreas e in net avsets resulfing

fram aperaiond 94,5211 [A53.5151 LIEAT [FETALTN (Fa%.286)

Mt At at Februang I8, 3021 USD S 401000 WSD SeNMnd1h WD 5512078 US0 1S AMUETG USD 62065435

Nusber of Unitd in Biue 8

Febeuaty I, M0 4,515 Al 48 FLFR L] LEE PR, ] LR TS
Lisins daued duriag The year .10 2,108 211,506 92550 EO0TELG
Unts redeemed curing Ihe year (H6Eaa) [3%.246) {65,521} 12,065 634) (EA%0.058)
Hamber of Unats in siue @

Feseuay 28, 2021 £ F2105 388954 LATR14S 2686579
Mt Aot Value per Uinig s

Februaty I8, 2011 usn G UsD G148 USD 100h  wEh 1050
Swhseriptions for Units

TP Mokl Distribution Cliss Usis and JFY Semi-Annul Distribution Clags Units were findt Baued 31 ap infid] issue price
of IFF 10,000 per Unit. The minimum inigial subscription for JFY Monthly Dtribution Clss Uit and JPY Semi-Anrual
Disteibgion Class Units per subseriber i 1 Uniser mare, and in multiphes of 1 Uris theneafies,

U0 Monthiy Distribution Class Units and USD Semi- Arnual Distribution Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Unit. The mirimum initial swbscrigtion for LUSD Morthly Distribution Cliss Unite and USD Semi-Anrual
Distribution Class Un s per subscriber i 10 Urits or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit thercafter.

Tk Marager may walve or changn the minimum initial and additional subscription amourts set forth abawe in it sole
dingrenian From Lime Do Tind,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recogrizes redemptions in accordarce with the authoritative guidance an distinguishirg luhilities from equitty.
Redemptians, whether expressed a3 United States Dallar, Japanese Yon or Units, are recogrited a3 Esbilities when each of
the Japarese Yen and United 55ates Dollar Urit amourts recuested in the recemptian rotcn bocames fend, which
pererally may socur either ot the time of the receipt af the natice, of an the lag day of 3 fiseal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, recemptions pake aftor the ond of the wear, but based upom year ord ot assets are
reflected as redemptiors payable at February 18, 2021, There were USD 158,530 for United States Dollar Units ard USD
1,350, 747 for laparese Yen Units of recemptions payable as at February 28, 2021 ircluded as Fayable for Units redeemed
in the Statemert of Assers ard Lisbilities.

Repurches ¢ of Uinits
Urits may be repurchased at the optien of Unithalders an each Valuatlor Doy, or such othor day or days ag the Manager
oy from Time 1o time determine in respect af the Series Trus ["Repurchase Doy}

Urithaolders withing to have Units repurchased must serd 3 completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors £o 35 ta be
recehved by the Distributers ro eer than 3200 pm, [Tekyo time] or the relevast Repurchase Day, The Distrburors wil
send the completed Repurchate Natioes ta the Sub-Adminitrator By no later than 6:00 pom. [Tekyo time) on the relevant
Repurchage Day or By such ather time a5 the Sub-Administrator may Im any pamcular case cetermine

If the relevant Repurchase Naotkon is not recedred by the Sub-Adminktrator by the relovart time, the Bepunchase Motion will
be held over wntil the next follawing Repurchase Day after the Repurchaie Matice i received ard Urits will then be
redermed 3t the relivant repurckase price applicatle ar tkat Repurckase Day.

A Repurchape Mot arde ghitn, 5 Srrvocable,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LINITS {continued)

Compulsory Redemption

Ir the eweert that the Trustes or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of o Series Trust sne being beld by
or for the benefit of a persor who & not an Eligible Investor for such Series Trust or that such holdieg would cause the
Truat of the Sefes Trust to be recuired o register, be subject to tax arf wialate the laws af ary juridiction, or i the Trustee
o the Manager kas reason to doubt the kgitimacy of the sourcn of monies vsed 1o fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, ar for whatever reasan {which may nat be dischosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Marager corsicers appropriate at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unithalders of
the rlevart Class of the Unithalders of the Series Trust o5 o whale, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof 1o sell such Uinits withie 10 days ang provide 1o the Trustee and the Manager evideron of
sueh sale, failieg which the Manager may nedesm such Urits,

Termination of the Fund
Upan termiratior, the Manager will realize all the assets af the Fusd, and alter paying out or retdiring adeguate provision
for all liabilties properky payable ard retaicing provision for the osts of the termiratior, the Trustee skall distribute the
procends of that realization ta the Unitkakiers prapartionately 1o their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
rermination of the Fund.

Biseributlons no b fbold:
The Marages may, fram tirme te tme, in B4 sole dheretion, declire ditributiors from Sep i J0LT. Distribaution will be
declared on each Business Day immediately prior ta the [x-Dittribution Date for JIFY and USD Distribution Class Units or
such ather date or dates as the Manager may from Time 1o time determine in respect of the Series Trust ["Distribution
Record Date”} ard calculated or the fifteenth [15th]) day of each montk for Montkly Distribution Class Urits and the
fifomarth (15¢h) cay of March and September of eack year for Semi-Anrual Distribution Class Units (if such cay & not a
Busiress Day, ther on the fallowing Business Dayj, or such ather date or cates in each morth as the Manager may from
TifnE Lo Tifve Setermice in respect of the Series Trust ["Ex-Distribution Date”]. Distribution Period is & period commancing
fram the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date ard ending an and including the Distribution

Record Date. The distributions will be paic on the relevant Distribution Paymert Date, provided that such amourt | any}
geclared with respect 1o the rebewant Class of Uris in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall only be paic out of
the Series Trust's et income, realiced and unrealized capital gairs amg any distributable furds of the Series Trust
artributable to sueh Clds of Linid as determined by the Marager.

Tha declaration of distribitiors to Unitholders recuces the Cls Level Net Asset Value per Uit witheut ary correspond ing
charge in the rumber of Cass Level Urits per Unitholder. This results in a Unitholder's overall investmeert in the Fund
being reduced. In addition, any dtributiars during a period which are in exoess of the Furd's net inonrease in net assets
mesulting from operatiors results in a partion of the distribution being return of capital.

The ameunt of distrbutions, if amy, will be determired By the Manager in 28 role discration, and no repretentation o
fuarantee & made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or ary Detdbution Period.

Capitaliration

The Net Aseet Value per Urit is calculated for each Dealing Day [each busineds day, commendng on March 30, 2007, or
such other day or days as the Marager may from time to time cetermire in respect of the Fund abio a {"Valuation Bay™), by
diviging the ciffersnce in value between the Furd's adents and linbiities [including scerued feed and experdes of the Fung)
by the number of Units outstanding,

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units to be ssved in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
gotprming and shall bo withouy par value,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accourting Stardand Cocffication [ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about dertvative instrumeets ard beding activities

It reguires that the Fund dischose: a) baw and why an ertify wses dermvative instroments, b how dervative instruments and
related hedged Eems are accounted for ard ¢ how cerwathes instruments and related bedged iems affect an ertity's
finarcial paistion, firancial perfarmarce and cash flaws.

Thaet Fune trardaets forwand defvative indrumerts primadly for heeging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk

axpasune bring forelgn excharge rsk. The foreare forelgn curmoncy exchange cortracts held by the Fure do not gualify as
hedges for accourting, purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dedvative instruments is
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

DERIVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS {comtinued)

included in the Statement of Assets and Liabiltées with changes in fair value reflected as realized gainsi{losses) or net
charge in unnealiced appreciatianf{depreciation) on defati witkin the 51 of Operations (Mote 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swapd and Dervative Adsodiation, Inc. Master Agneemaret (TIS0A Master
Agresment”] with its counterparties in order to mitigate countenparty risk. The BDA Master Agreement ks typlally
ﬂhﬂﬁilbﬁ B the Fund and its counterparties, {drlaiﬂiﬂ‘ the bi-lateral terms and canditians for all subsequert dedrative
transactiors, The 1504 Master Agreement allows for the retting of all amounts awed to or due from courterparty into a
dingle net paymect i s crecit eaert or defau it dhauld eecur.

A1 February 28, 2021 the Fund had estered into the Following derivative assets by countarparty met of amourts availa ble
for offset under a Master Metting Agreement [“8MNAT] and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Borhvathve Auiats  Cachvath Man-cath Eaik Wt Amsunt of
Eounterparty Subject to 3 MG _ivwallsble for Offset Collsteral Recehved Collateral Recehved Derhath Ausets!
Brown Braters Rariman & G, USDH 7,762 D 10 s s s H
Citibank PB 5,364 {8,354)
Tatal uso 14546 30 {8374 U5D ~uso ~usn [

A February 28, 2021 the Fund had enteded ieto the follewing dervathee labilties by counterparty ret of amounts avadable
for offset under a MNAand ret of any collatera| pledged by the Furd:

Desibcative Derhvathved hon-cxh Caik Nt Ameunt ol
Counterpuarty Liak Hitder Available for Ot Collsters] Pledged Collatecal Pladged Darbeathos
Subject to 2 MNA Usbirles'
Hrevwry Brothers Marriman & Co Lrigr 1 LED 100 LSy = LIS = LS -
Cibank PB 398, 555 ELBI-] .ﬂ'ﬂ]
Total Usp__ sssesusD  {8374)UsD —uso _usD___ 390,151
T NE et Pl ThE PET Bmou ieteiieblepiyilie o e paity i the gebrt of defeul

At February 28, 2021 the Fund bhad entered into the followieg denvatives:

Sunart Derheatives Lishility Derbeathes
Derhvatheet Statmment Seatemant
Kot Aroosnted for as of Assets and of Axcets and
[Hedging Be 17T Liabilinies Locatisn Faid W aluss Liakilithes Location Faile "V lui
Forward foneign currendy  Unnealined appreciaton U ealred depreriaton
R RANGE COMTACTS o0 foraans fanegn o Barward foregn
{Currency Raid CUTTENCY EXChaNgE [1.7¢] T 06 Curmeny exchange (1.1 [EL - RTAY]
COAMracis oomtrats.
Thae effect of derivative i Vi ot Ehe 51 of Operatiaons for the year ended February 28, 2021
Churge i Uesoalitid
Locatisn of Rialied Apprecistion or
Deerivatives Mot Account sd Gabm or {Los) Galn or {Loas) {Dapreciation) on
Tt as Hedging on on Derhvashies Cerhvath
et realded gainon loraard foreign
Farwasd foneigs Cufrisdy Euffendy exthasge coalratb;
et hange condracts change in unneal ived depreciation on forwand
{Curmency Raid fore'gn cumrency exchange o ntracts D 1,485,522 UsD 11,359 4100
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Marager is entitled to recehe out of the assets of the Seres Trust a maragement fee of a total vp to E2% per annum
[0.03% per annum in respect of fee for the Marager, 0.25% per anoum of the Met Asset Value up 1o USD 200 million and
0.22% per annum of the Mot Asset Walue aver USD 400 million in respect of fee forthe Investment 8Manager, and 0,200 por
annuem af the Ner Asiet Value up to USD 400 millicn and 0355 per anrum of the Mer Asser Value aver USD 200 milliar in
respact af fee for the Sub-lrvestment Marager] of the Not Asset Value acoread on, and calculated a5 at, each Valuation
Day ard payable montbly in areears. In addition, the Manager is alto ertithed to be reimbursed out of the ssiets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper porformance of its powers and duties as permittec under the
Master Trust Deed. Duricg the year ended February 28, 2021, the Manager corned fees of USD 512,745, of which USD
33.573 ts salll outsta nging as of February 28 2021,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

MANAGEMENT FEES [continucd)

The Manager will pay the fres of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The Imvestment Manager will be resparsible for
payieg the fees of the Sub-lrvestmert Marager and sy of the Irvestmert Manager's delegates or other parties appainted
by the Irvestment Manager to perfore its furcticns in respect of the Series Trust

CUSTODMAN AMD SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. [the “Custocian® and “5ub-
Admicistratad™) far whick the Custodiin reoehied & fee caliulited ard paid modthly bidted an total ddiets ard Wraridctian
s,

The Custoeian and Sub-Adminktrator i entithed to receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust an sdmirktration foe
[inchuding trarsfer agert fee) cakulated based on the Het Asset Value 25 at cach Valuation Day at the following anrual
L LR

- DU up ta fand including] USD 250 milkan;

- U6 up vo (and inclugding) USD 500 milkan;

- D05 awer USD S00 millian,

Such administration fee & payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the mirimum annual fee of USH 80,000, The Sub

At irISEaTee B dlo ertithed o receive out of the dssets of the Seried Tres fees for currendy MdmirdTataar and execution
sordices at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minimum anrual
fen of LSO 50,000, In adéitian, the Cusadian and Sub-Administeator is alse ertiled 1o receive customary safekeepieg fees
and transaction charges. All out-of pocket expenses of the Custodian ard Sub-Administrator shall ako be borne by the
Sortes Trust, Duning the year ended Febaaary 28, 2021, the Custodian earred fees of USD 70,481, of which USD 14,954 &
still sutstardirg as of Februany X8, 3021,

TRUSTEE FEES

Thke Trustee ks ertitied to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combired fee at the rate of 0U015% per anrum of
the Het Asset Value aconeec on, and caliulites as at each Valvation Day ang payable quartery in annears. sulject 1o a
minimum annual fee of WSO 15,000, During the wear enced Fobruary 28, 2021, the Trustee carmed fees of USD 15,002, of
which USD 9,533 i still sutstanding o of February 28, 2021.

AGENT COM PANY'S FEES

The Agent Company & ertitled ta receioe out of the ssets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0L.02% per annum of the
Net fsset Walue acorued or, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable guarterly in arrears. Durirg the year
erded Februsey 28 J02 1, the Agent earned feed of USD 15081, of which USD 2,004 & atill autstancing &5 of February 28,
2021

DESTRIBUTICN FEES

Tha Disteibutors are entitled to receive oot of the assets of the Seres Trost a fee at the rate of 0.60% per arnum of the Net
Azzet Walue accrued on, and calculated a5 at eack Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrars. Dwring the year ended
Febeuary 28, 2021, the Distributers eamed fees of USD 452,426, of which WSD 62,423 & still outstanding as of February 28,
2021,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs ard experses in conrection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Urits, together
with the citshlichmant of the Trudt, including the costs ard ewperses af preparing ard printicg any praspectus or
explanatory brochures required, weore estimated at bunch to amourt to approximately USD 1400000, Suchk costs and
expenses will be amortised within the firt five (5] ficancial years of the Series Trust unbess the Trustee decides that same
otkar marthod shall be applied, The Ag mintstrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA / CRS complance senices,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Furd's activities capose it to a wariety of financial risks: market risk (inclucing price risk, interest rate sk, and currency
risk], enedit risk ard liguicity rigk.

Market Risk
Al irvestmars presaint a sk of koss of capital. The Investment Marager modnrates this risk through a careful seloction of
secwrities and ather financia | instruments.

Thi Fund's ifvestmist maragimert process is cewcribed in Mate 1. The primary determicant of the Fund's ability g mest
s objectve of mid 1o long term capital appreciation while earning ircome is deperdert on the performarce of the
investient in the residential ard commencial mongage-backed securnies,

The values of the Furd's imvestments ane sffected by a rumbeer of factors, incluging but rot limited to, charges in the wider
ecoramy, Tinancial and cwnmency markets, foreign currency exchang raTEs, iNTBNEST FITE MOVEMErYS and creds ratings of
debt jsuers. The Fund enters into farward cartracts which to varying degrees represent 3 market risk in excess of the
amount reflecoee on the Furd's Statemart of Assets ard Liabdities, The notiaral amount of the contract EprERENTS The
extent of the Fund's participation i these firarcial Fstrements. Market rtks Jociated with tuch contraces arise due 1o
thir passible movements in foreign currercy pachange rates urderlying these nstruments

Other marke dng oredin rigks inchude the possibil ity that there may be an illicuie market for the cortracts, That the chanpe
in the value af the contract may rat directly correlate with changes in the walue of the underlying curnencies ar that the
counterpay 1o a forwand cortract defauls on s cbligation o perform ueder the terms of the contracr. The Fund's
exposune to oss dur to countenparty ronperfarmarce on open futures, forwards, swap ard options contracts is limited to

thie unrealized appreciatien inherent in such firancial instrumeets which ane recognized e the Stamement of Assets and
Liahilities.

Asset-backed securities nvestment risk

Adget-backed weourition irvestment have the risk thar basrowerns mdy default on the abligatiors thar uncerlie the sioe-
backed security ang that, during periocs of fallieg interest rates, asset-bached socurities may be called or prepaid, which
may result in the Series Trust bawing to reinvest proceeds in other investments at a lower interest rate, ard the risk that
the impainment of the value of the collateral underlying a securty bn whick the Series Trust irvests [due, for example, 1o
nan-payment of loans] will resul in 3 reduction in the value of the security.

Canmdentration ik

Tho Sores Trust bovests substantially in bonds issued by WS, agenches in acordamon with its principal investment
strategies. Because such securities are Esued by a limited number of government agencies, any actual or potertial
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Series Trust. Fannie Mae ard Freddie Mac, whick are other
Rovernmert-sponsared istuers of mortgage-back securities Similar to thode guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, suffered such a
gisnuption in the mangape cist of 2007 - 2008 and were pliced under federal consereatonship ot that vene, Ginrde Mae
sociries, urlike these of Farnie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and erodit of the LS, goverm ment ang
arn subject to the risks of LS, govarnment securithes, Similar to atkar issuers, changes to the firancial concitior or cred
rating of the U2, governmert may cause the value of the Seres Trust's exposure to U S, agencies securities to decline.

Mortgoge-bocked securities rick

Morgage-backed securfis mpreseet interests e Tpeols™ of mongages and are subject te crecin interest e,
prepaymient and exmendion k. Mortgapge-backed Leouritios react differently to changes in inteneet rated than ather bords
and the prices of mortgage-backed socurities may reflect adverse economic and market conditiors. Small movemarts in
interest rates (both increases and decreases] may quickly ard significartly reduce the value af cetain martgage-backed
securtied, Defaul or bankruptey of & counterpany to b To-be-anrounced WrAnLICTion would expose the Sered Trust 1o
posdible ks
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continucd)

Martgage-reloted and Other Asset-Bocked Securities dsk

The Fund may invest in momgage-relited ard ather awset-backed securities that directly or indinectly represent a
pamicipatian in, ar ane secured by ard payabde from, loans am real propemy, Mongage- related securities ane created from
pook af retiderto) o commencial manpage kaacd, includicg maregape leand made by dvingl ane ko indtitutiaed,
martgage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly paymaet which consists of both
interest and peincipal. Interest may be determired by fied or adjustable rates. The rate of prepayments on wnderlying
martgages will affect the prioe and wolatility of a mogage related security, and may hawe the effect of shortenieg or
extending the effectve duration of the securlty reldtive to what wai anticipated 5t the time of purckade. The timely
payment of priscipal ang irverest of comain mongage-nelated seourithes s guarantesd with the full faith and credit of the
U5 Gowermmert. Poold created ard gueardrieed by ron-povernmental Bsvers, including gonvern ment-Sponsonsd
corparatiens, may be supportad by varaws forms of insurancn ar guarantees, but thene cam be 0o assuranco that prvate
insurers ar guarantors can meet their obligations urder the insurance polices or guarantes arrargements. Many of the
risks af irvesting in mangage-relited securities secunee by commercial martgage kars reflect the effects of local ang
ather economic corditiors on real pdtate markets, the skilty af tersnts ta make leade paymerts, ard the akility of &
PP Ty B ATAICT And TN TRRANTS

Crdit Risk

Credit risk represents the potertial koss that the Furd would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debt securities failed
o peerfarm purduant 1o the terms of their abligations to the Furd. For exchange-traded contracts, the excharge 5014 a3 the
counterparty to specific transactiars and, therefone, bears the risk of delivery to ard from counterparies of specific
positions. The Fund s managemant cosd Aot fordices That orecs fdk related 1o opon dervative contracts will Rave material
agverss effect on the finarcial cond tior of the Fund,

Although the Manager moriors the Custodian and believes it to be ar appropriate custodian, there & ro guarantee that
this ar ary custagian that the Furd may use fram time to time, will not Become insalvert, which <ould kead 1o losses for
the Fund,

While both the U.S. Bankruptey Code and the Spcurities Investor Protection Act of 1570 seck to protect customar propeny
in the ewent of 3 Failure, insobsency or liquidation of an instifution, tRere it no certainty that, i the event of 3 failure of an
institwtion that has custody of Furd asseis, the Fund would rof incur losses due to its assets being uravailable for a period
of time, ultimately bess than full recovery of s Jesets, o batk. Because all of the Fure™s cath i ir custody with 3 singhe
ingtinution, such losses could be significant and could matarially impair the abdiny of the Fund 1o achiewe TS Irvestmeet
abjectivi, TRe Fund i Subpect i crdit risk 1o the fxtent R Uhis instituticn @y be unable 1o Tulill it ablgations 1o répey
AMOUNTE owed,

hquidity Rigk
Irwetbars shauld Be aware that the value af Units migkt fall as well a2 rde. lovestment in the Fund invehoes i cegree of risk;
thene €an b ne assurance that the Fursd's irvesument abjective will b2 achirved,

The Fund is exposad to cally repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Furd kas sufficient resources to
meeet the present and foresecable needs of its business operations and, if recessary, the Bguidity to fund repurchases and

athieve 3 market potition appropriately reflecticg a smaller capital base. This position & manfored continually by
ManIgemeny (o ensure That the Fund has the ability 1o meet B3 obligatiors,

Currency Risk

The Fund kalds monetary and non-manetary assets and ircurs monetary and non-maretary labilities denomirated in
currercies othes than USD, the Functional Currerey. It is therefore exposed 1o cunmency risk, 38 the value of the Jdsem and
liabilities denominated in ather currencies {“non-USDT) will Aluctuste due fo changes in exchange rates The Fund may
APTRT BNED S PR RSy Pt iR TRENEACTRanS Trom TNk 1o Time Im o rser 1o limit 1S exposune 19 curmency risk,

The investment manager monitors the Fund's cunency ceposune on a daily basis.

Other Rk

During the year, the COVID-19 cutbaeak was ceclined a pardemic by the Warkd Healh Organization. The situatian is
dyramic with various citles and countries arourd the world resparding In gifferent ways to address the outbroak. The
rapid development and fluidity of this simcation preclhodes any preciction as s vhimate impact, whick may have a
cartinued acherse impact an ecoramic and market corditiors ard trigger a pericd of ghobal ecoromic shewdown.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continucd)

The Trustee ard Ievestmert Manager are monitoneg developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordirating their
aperational resporse Baded an exiting butiness continuity plars and on guidance from global bealth arganizations,
ki it gavenn et and general panciemic respanse DSt pracrioes,

COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

Ir the normal course of busicess, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into cortracts that contain a variety of
reprétantatiang ard warrantied ard whick pravide genedsl indemnifications. The general indemaifications apply rat arky
0 the oxtort such ropresentations and wamanties ane urtrue but ake may coser thind pamies such as the Fund's
Admiristrator, MdRor of lvestment Manager for claims related 1o the services performed Tor the Fursd, The Trustes's
MAKMUT GXPOSLIE LAGer ary such arrangements B unknown, a5 exposure arly arkes 1o the oxtent future daims that
hawe not yet accunmed are made agairst the Trestee. However, based on experience, the Trustee capects the risk of bass to
e nemate

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On August 28, 2008, the FASE ssued an Accountierg Stancards Update, ASU 2008-13, Fair Value Measuremoet [Topic 820):
Dizsclosure Framework-Changes ta the Disclosure Beguirements for Fair Value Measurement [ASL 3018-137). ASU M018-13
mocifies the disclosure abjective paragraphs of ASC B0 1o eliminate (1) "at 2 micimum” from the phrase "an ety shall
digchose at 3 mirimum™ and | X] other similar “open erded” declosune reguirements to promote ERe appropriate caprciss af
discretion by entigies, ASU J018-13 akeo elminstes and modfies ather recuirements under ASC 820, The updane & effective
far all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods witkin those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, Early
application & penmang,

A his time, it is not anticipated That these changes will have an impact an the firancial statemenes.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Maragement performed a sebseguent ¢wents review up o July 6, 2021 which b the cate the financial statemants wene
available to be Esued.

Cffective March 1, 2021 through July &, 2021, there were subscriptions of USD 542 in respect of IPY Monthly Distribution
Clss ang these were subseriptiors of USD 133654 in respect of IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Clads, there were
subscriptions of USD 102089 in respect of USD Morthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptiors of USD 29,561 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distrbution Class,

[#Hective March 1, 2021 throwgh July 6, D021, there were redemptiors of USD 332415 in respect of IPY Monthly
Distribution Class and thare were redemptions of USD 2,582,450 in respect of IPY Semi-Arnual Distribution Class, thare
were redemption of USD 273529 in respect of USD Manthly Divrbutson Cliss, there were redemptiond of USD 2,296,175
in respect of USD Semi-Anrual Bistribution Class.

There were distributions of USD 17.452 i respect af JFY Manthly Distribution Clss. There were distributions of USD
129,895 in redpect af JIPY Semi-Araual DeEtribution Cladd, There wene digfrbutiand of USD 30778 in redpect af LISD
Mantkly Distribution Class. There were cistributions of WSD 111,698 in respect of USD Semi-Arnual Distribution Class

Thers are no other signficant ovents 1o repart a5 they mlate to tha Fund,
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2020 29
2020 29
83,941,250 85,595,090 9,465,105
1,105,253 122,219
1,880 208
214,797 23,752
1,019,797 112,769
87,936,817 9,724,053
989,231 109,389
126,955 14,039
81,530 9,016
47,530 5,256
45,595 5,042
25,333 2,801
3,847 425
2,770 306
464 51
441 49
12,886 1,425
26,395 2,919
1,362,977 150,718
86,573,840 9,573,335
83,329,072 9,214,529
3,244,768 358,806
86,573,840 9,573,335
740,002,439
74,915 9,878
4,110,797,927
409,243 10,045
2,527,093
242,969 10.40 1,150
39,075,715
3,642,894 10.73 1,187
110.58
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2020 29

3,195,763 353,387
3,195,763 353,387
512,288 56,649
452,019 49,984
99,038 10,952
63,042 6,971
15,067 1,666
15,043 1,663
10,028 1,109
3,270 362
74,587 8,248
1,244,382 137,604
1,951,381 215,784
266,416 29,460
(1,055,760) (116,746)
(789,344) (87,286)
3,536,505 391,067
1,209,992 133,801
4,746,497 524,868
3,957,153 437,582
5,908,534 653,366

110.58
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2020 29
1,951,381 215,784
(789,344) (87,286)
4,746,497 524,868
5,908,534 653,366
(96,126) (10,630)
(309,101) (34,180)
(57,938) (6,407)
(263,722) (29,162)
(726,887) (80,379)
11,138 992,671 109,770
8,077 720,567 79,680
61,310 626,045 69,228
2,018,963 21,054,737 2,328,233
34,347 (3,037,545) (335,892)
24,553 (2,222,448) (245,758)
98,361 (997,618) (110,317)
698,832 (7,220,086) (798,397)
9,916,323 1,096,547
15,097,970 1,669,534
71,475,870 7,903,802
86,573,840 9,573,335

110.58
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2020 29

2020 29
85,595,090 85,595,090
1,019,797 1,019,797
86,614,887 86,614,887
2020 29
12,886 12,886
12,886 12,886
FASB ASC 740

50
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10 213
42
175,497
40
879,116
()



2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

28

29

28

29

29
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8,426,936 36,935,001 2,762,565 23,351,368 71,475,870
992,671 720,567 626,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
(3,037,545) (2,222,448) (997,618)  (7,220,086)  (13,477,697)
(96,126)  (309,101) (57,938) (263,722) (726,887)
574,514 2,986,563 194,039 2,153,418 5,908,534
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
98,124 425,719 280,020 2,322,763 3,126,626
11,138 8,077 61,310 2,018,963 2,099,488
(34,347) (24,553) (98,361) (698,832) (856,093)
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
91.58 93.12 10.40 10.73
10,000
10.00
10
2020 29
2020 29 126,955
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2017
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2020 29 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 10
Citibank PB 1,019,787 (12,886) 1,006,901
1,019,797 (12,886) 1,006,911
2020 29 MNA
MNA
(€]
Citibank PB 12,886 (12,886)
12,886 (12,886)
@
2020 29
1,019,797 (12,886)
2020 29
(1,054,826) 1,209,989
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0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2020 29
512,288 2020 29 45,595
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2020 29 99,038 2020
29 47,530
0.015
15,000 2020
29 15,043 2020 29 3,847
0.02
2020 29 15,067
2020 29 2,770
0.60
2020 29 452,019
2020 29 81,530
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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2007 - 2008
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13
2020 26
2020 2020
1,690
2020 2020
745,021
662,193
23,250
CovID-19
2020 11
(

)

26

26

23,667

1,054,815

460,675

217,396

2019
( )COVID-19
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94,307

100,915

1,630,294

153,869

COVID-19
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

AsaEs:

Irvpestmenils A securities, Bl vatae [cost of USD 3,941, 250) ush 8BS, 595,000
Lanh 1,105,253
Receivable for subscrinbion proceeds 1,580
It Eesl feceivabie 214,797
Unnpa sed agparecation oa lonwad lanegn carrency exchanie coalrscls 1,019 a7
Todal asaects BT 936517
Lizhilities:

Payabie for investments puschased A9, 231
Payabie for Uails redeemied 126,955
Sacraed datoutors fees B1.5300
Sacroed custodian s sub-sdminstrators fees 47 530
Agerued management lses 45585
Sacraed probessional Tees 25,333
Sacroed rustes fees JE47
Accrued agent company's fees 2.
Accraed registration Tees 464
Accraed transler agent Tees 441
Unsrpaised depcecinlan on lorwatd aregn currendy exdhange conlracls 12 586
Db enpenses 26,105
Todal liabilites 1362977

Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn HES73,E40
Analysiz of Met Astets:
Pald Incapital ush B3 329072
Todal distributable earnings 3,244, T6H
Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn 6,573,840
Mirt At Valoo pir Unit
{IPY Monthiy Distribation Class. IPY 780,002,439 & 74,915 Units outstanding) L SRR
{IFY Semi-Amnea | Dt Dutos Class JFY 4,110,797 927 + 409, 243 Units outstamdag) FY 10,045
_—
{USD Moty Distribution Class USD 2,527,093 + 242,969 Linits aoutstasding] 5D 1040
{USD SembAnnual Distrioution Class USD 39,075,715 + 3,642 594 Units outstanding) ush 10,73

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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IneRstmant Ineam:
interest
Tetal Investment lagams

Exparise:
Management Tees
Distrowtor's fees
Custodian and sub-adminstrator's fees
Prodesaonal fees
Agent company's fees
Triuntbee fees
Tranafer agent fees
Registration fees
Ohier Enpenses

Total Expenses

Met Investmant |Rcomeas

Realized and Unrealired Gaing/{Losses):
Rz ol gain) [ iosses)
Imseesirmends in secarites
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Het realized loses
Change inwnrealived appreciation[depr eciation]
Imeestrments in secarities
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Ket cheage in warealized sppreciation
Mt nealized a5 wirealized gains

Met ncrease innet adsets resulting from operations

[157+] 185 Ta3
3,195,763

512 288
452019
99,034
63,042
15,067
15,043
10,028
3270
74587
1,244,182

1,951,381

266416

{1,055, T60)
[¥£9,344)

1,536,505
1,209,592
4,746 497
3,957,153

ush 5,908,534

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Ineridii [Decrenis] in Mt Asets ram:

Operations:

Kot invistmet iscomie usD 1951281
Kot riealiged \osses {TED 144)
Ket change inuncealised agaredation 4 Ta6 407
Ket incremse imnet assets resulting from operations 3908534

Distributions to Unithalders:

1P Moathly Dot tion Class (96, 1.26)
1Y Spmd-Annual Distribufion Class { B9 101}
USE Monthly Distriouton Cas [57 S38)
USESemi-Anniual Distribaton Chss [363,722)
Todal Distributions (726 867)
Capital Transactions:
LIt isdand
1PY Mesathly Distioation Class (11,138 Units) 292,671
I Spmi-Annual Distribution Class {B077 Uaits) 710567
USEr Monthly Distrioution s {61,310 Un'ts) 6206 045
USE SembAnnual Distribation Cass (2,008 963 Unigs) 21,054 737
Un'ts redeemied
IFY Moathly Disteinuton Class (34, 347 Units) {3.037,545)
1FY Semc-Anaual Distributes Cass {14,553 Units) (2221 448)
USDr Moenthly Distribution Cass {96,361 Units) {997 G1B)
USE Semi-Annual Bistribation Chss (G958 532 Unaits) 4 220 ABG)
Ket increase innet assets resulting from cip'tal transactons 916 323
Total lncreass n Nat Asseis 15,047 970
Mt Adseti;
Beg nining of year TLAT5E0
Endd ol year Wsh Bi5.573 840

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

ORGAMNIZATION

Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “Fund”) ks a series tust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit trust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated February 8, 2017 [the “Supplemental Trust Deed™), under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and is licensed with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority pursuant
to section 4(1){a} of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on a day to day basis by Mikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manaper
delegates imestment management duties to Nikko Asset Management o, Ltd., [the “Investment Manager”), The
Investment banager delegates investment management duties to Doubleline Capital L®, (the “Sub-Investment Manager”).
The admintstration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hardiman & Co, [the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator”),
a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New Yorik,

The investrment abjective of the Fund is to achieve a mid ta long term total return thraugh income and capital appreciation,
Under normal circumstances, the Series Trust shall invest ower 509 of its net assets in residential and commarcial
martgage-backed securities, sctively allocated between agency and non-agency Securities.

These investments may include morgage-backed securites of any maturity of type, including those guaranteed by, or
secured by collateral that is guaranteed by, the United States Government, its agencies, instrumentalies. or sponsored
corparations, and privately issued mortgage-backed securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's ar
Adi- ar higher by S&P or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating erganization ["NRSRO")
that has been recognized by the LS. Securites and Exchange Commission or unrated securities that are determined by the
Investmant Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality. These investmients alto intlude, among othars, U.S,
Government mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized momgage obligations, multiclass pass-through securities,
private martgage passthrough securities,

The Series Trust may also invest in short term investments, such as notes issved by US. Governmant agencies, and bonds,
debt securities and other fed income instruments issued by .S, Governmental or private-sector entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized loan obligations, and obligations of the WS Gowernment and its agencies,
instrurnentalitkes and spansored corporations.

The Series Trust may invest in bonds of any eredit quality, including thase that are at the tme af investment unrated or
rated B&+ or lower by S&F or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSRO, Bonds and finad
income instruments rated below Evestrent grade, or such instruments that are unrated and deterrined by the
Investment banager or its delegates to be of comparable quality, are high yield, high risk bonds, commaenly known as ‘junk
bands’. The Series Trust may invest up to a third of its net assets in junk bonds, bank lbans and assignrents that are either
rated below investment grade or are unrated but determined by the Investment Manager or its delegates to be of
comparable quality, and credit default swaps of companies in the high yield universe,

The Series Trust may (nvest a portion of its net assets in inverse floater securitees and interest-only and principal-only
securities.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee” and the “Administrator”) is named as Trustee of the Fund.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Margan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company [the “Agent
Company”) and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley P8 Securities Co., Ltd and SMEBC Trust Bank Ltd, to
act as Distributors (the “Distributors”) of Units in Japan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 948,

Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
thee United States of America (U5 GAAPY). The preparation of financial staterments in accordance with .S, GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, includ ing the uktimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ fram thowe estimates and such differences may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Basls of Accounting

Security and contractual wransactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax Interest expense and other expenies are recorded on an accrual
basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the bask of the average cost of the securities
wold or coversd. Changes in the valwation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valwation of Investments

Bands and other debt secufities, including restricted securities (other than short-term abligations but including lsted
Issues) are fair valued at thebr last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis af valuations furnished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the |pvestment Manager, of if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle shall be Tair valued wsing an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amartization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparnson with
market prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under ULS. GANP, the Fumd
discloses the fair value of its investmenits in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques wsed to measure
the fair walue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or labilities [Level 1 measwrernent) and the lowest priority to valuations based wpon unobservable
inputs that are significant bo the valuation [Level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

*  Liwel 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement dabe;

#  Livel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the astet of lability sither
directly or indirectly, including Inputs in markets that are not considered to be acthve;

*  Level 3 - Inputs that are significant and unobservable

Inputs are ubed in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the pions that market panicipants
use to make valuation decislons, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, specific and broad
credit data, liquidity statistics, and ather factors. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “obiarvable” requires significant judgment by the Investrment Manager. The [nvestrent Manager condidirs
observable data to ke market data which is readily available, regularly d stributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the rebevant market. The categarization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessanily
correspand to the Investment Manager’s perceived risk of that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on the guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain L.5. government and sowerelgn obligations, and certain asset-backed
securities and callateralized mortgage obligations, The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such
Instruments, ewen In situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Investmants that trade in markets that are not considiered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2, These include
investmant-grade debt securities, short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts and may also
include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, As Lewel 2 investments inclede positions
that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Valwation of Investments fcontinuved)

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently, Level 3
Instrurments would include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are
not avallable for those securities, the Fund would use valuation techniques to derive the fair value.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing
in those securities.

The fallowing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 29, 2020. Further dassifications of the financial instruments are
prisented in the Portfolio of Investments. There were no movements batween bevels during the year,

Agsets at Fair Value Fair Value at
Level 1 Lival 2 Loval 3 February 29, 2020
Faed Incamie sD - Ll B5, 595, 050 s - LISC 55,595,050
Farwand Feregn Catrendy
Exchange Conlracts = 1019707 = 1019, 797
Total ush = UsD B, 614 887 usc = use 26,614,887
Lisbilities ot Fair Value Fair Value g
Liwverl 1 Lisvirl 2 Livid 3 Fiebruary 29, 320
Forward Forelgn Carrency
Exchange Contracts usD - W50 11,556 50 = LI5S0 121EHE
Tedal Usp = UsD 11 5R6 UsD = UsD 11586
Foreign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar (“USD" or the “Functional Currency®) are translated
to the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign currency transactions are included in the Statement of Operations in the
period in which they occur.

The Fund does mot isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates on
imvestmants from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are indudad
with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from investmenits.

Incame Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman slands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interes received by the Fund, Capital gains defived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be eéxempt from foreign
Income ar withholding taxes at source. The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it willl not be subject to Income tax
in any jurisdiction. As a reswlt, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may
be taxed on their proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis income based on thelr indvidual circumstances.

The Fund follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdlesure of uncertainty im tax positsons (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740, which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized In the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized wpon ultimate settlement
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there Is minimal or no effect on the financial
statements being under this authortative guidance,

Fonward Fareign Currency Exchange Contracts

Thee Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1o hedge againit foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of nonUSD denominated investments or for efficient portfolio management purposes. When
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fised quantity of
foreign currancy for an agreed-upan price on an agread future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's nat
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on the contracts as measured by the difference
between the farward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Fonward Forelgn Currency Exchonge Contracts fcontinued)
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included
in the Statement of Operations,

These instruments imvalve market risk, eredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from movement in curency and tecurities values and interest rates. In addition to the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USD 213 on 16 forward foreign currency exchange contracts during the year with an average
notianal of USD 39,669 and an average berm to maturity of 10 days. The Fund had net realized loss of USD 175,497 on 42
forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JFY Monthly Distribution Class Hedped level during the year with
an average notional of USD 4,603,462 and an average term to maturity of 28 days. The Fund also had realined loss of USD
B79,116 on A0 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Hedged leval
during the year with an average notional of USD 23,127,234 and an average term to maturity of 29 days,

Cosh ond Foreign Currency
Cash and forelgn currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and overnight and other shart
term placements with ather financial institutions.

UNITS

The nit assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Maonthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Sermi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
UsD Meonthly Distributhon Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units. The Units are denominated in United
Seated Dollar and lapanese Yen. JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Semi-Annusl Distribution Class Units, USD
Maonthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units are available to an eligible investor who &
ANy perLon, corparation of entity which & not (i) a citizen of resident of the ULS., a partnership ofganized of existing in the
U5, or any corporation, trust or other entity organized under the laws of or extsting in the US; (8} person or entity resident
of domiciled in the Cayman Blands (excluding ary object of a charitable trust or power of an exempted of non-redident
Cayman klands company); [ill] unable to subscribe for or hald Units without violating applicable laws, or () a custodian,
nominee, or trustes for any person, corporation or entity described in (i) to iii) abowe.

The Manager may determineg to issue one or mare classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unitholders,

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, J#Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
UISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, are held by two Linitholders.

1P Monthly JEY Serni-Annual LED Manthly  USD Semi-Annual

o Class  Distribution Oass  Distribution Class  Distributtion Class Tetal Fured
Balamsie Al Fobewany 28, 2009 UsSD EA26936 USD 36935001 WUSD 2TEES65 USD 23.351.36E USD 7L4T5ETD
Subseriptions during the year 92671 T 567 616,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
Redemptions duting the year {3,037,545) {2,222, 448} {99T.618) {7.220,0B6) (13,477,687)
Distrioutions (96, 1.26) {309,101 {57.935) [263,722) {7 6,887)
Ket increme imnet assets resulting
froen operatons 574,514 2,586,563 154,039 2,153 418 5,508.534

Ket Assets at Febraary 29, 2020 UsDr  GEGDASD  USD 3R 1I0DS5E2  USD 257093 USD 39075715 USD B6.5T3.H40

Kumber af Un'ts in ssue at

Fearmry 28, 2019 98,124 425,719 250,020 1,322,763 3,126,626
Uit insued dusing Uhe yesr 11,138 BOT7 1,310 2018963 2,100 ARR
Units redeemmied during the yeae {34,347 [24,553) (5 361} {656 833} {B56, 06 3)
Numiser af Units in ssue at

Fetirusny 29, 2020 74,915 419,243 242,568 3642 534 4,370,021

Met Asset Value per Unitat
Fergaty 29, 2020 usE 2156 USD 9312 Wb 1040 U5 .73

Suhseriptions for Units

JFY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price
af IPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimurn initial subscription for JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in muliples of 1 Units thereafter,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UINITS [eontinued)

Swbseriptions for Uait (continued)

LISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first Bsved at an initial issue price
of USD 10,00 per Unit. The minimum initial subscription for USD Manthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 10 Units or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Manager may waive or change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts et forth abowe in its sole
discretion from time to time,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from equity,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabikties when each of
the Japanese Yen and United 5tates Dodlar Unit amownts requested in the redemption notice becomas fixed, which
renerally may occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflected as redemptions payable at February 29, 2020, There were USD 126,955 and JPY nil of redemptions payable as at
February 29, 2020 induded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Repurchose af Uinits
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day.

Unitholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors so as to be
received by the Distributors ne later than 3200 p.m. [Tokyo time) on the relevant Repurchase Day. The Distributors will
send the completed Repurchase Motices to the Sub-Administrater by no later than 6:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the relevant
Riepurchase Day or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine,

If the relevant Repurchase Notice is not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurchase Notice will
be held over until the nest following Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notice is received and Units will then be
redeermed at the relevant repurchase price applicabe on that Repurchase Day.

A Repurchase Notice, once given, is irrevocable.

Compuilsory Redemption

I the ewent that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of a Series Trust are being held by
or for the benefit of a person who & not an Eligible Investor for such Seried Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust ar the Series Trust to be reguired to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
of the Manager has fieadon to doubt the bgitimacy of the source of monies usid to fund the subscription of purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unithalders) that the
Trustine of the Manager considers appropriatic at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unithalders of the Series Trust as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed “Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager
may risdeem such Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate pravision
far all Eabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procesds of that realization to the Unitholders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Lnitholders

The Manager may, from time to time, in its sole discretion, dedare distributions from September 2017, Distribution will be
declared on each Dstribution Record Date and caleulated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution Periad is a period
commencing from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the
Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such
amount (if any} declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall
only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realized and unrealized capital gains and ary distributable funds of the
Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UNITS [eortinued)

Distribwtions ta Unitholders fcantinued)

The declaration of distributions to Unithalders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit withaut any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This results in a Unithalder's overall investment in the Fund
being rediced. In addition, any distributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund®s net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amaunt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its role discretion, and no representation or
puarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or ary Distribution Period.

Capitaliration

The Net Asset Value per Unit is caleulated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day of days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

Thie Trust Deed stipulaties that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instrumants and hedging activities,
It requires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entity uses dersative instruments, b) how derivative instruoments and
related hedged items are accounted far and ) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
finarcial position, financial perfarmance and cash flaws,

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dervative instruments is
includied in the Statement of Adsets and Liabilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gaina/[losses) of nét
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Nabe 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swaps and Derivative Associathon, Inc. Master Agreement [TSDA Master
Agretment”} with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement & typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral verms and conditions for all subsequent derivative
transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due fram counterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur.

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivathve assets by counterparty net of amounts avallable
for affset under a Master Netting greement [“MNA®) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dhevivative Asbets Derivative: Mon-tash Cash Het Amount of
Counte rparty Subject to a MNA  Available for Offset Collateral Received Collateral Received Cwerivative Assets’
Broaen Brothers Mariman & o, USD 10 Ush - LSk - usor ~ LS 10
Citibans PB 1,019, 787 {12 BEb) - - 1,005, 3411
Totsd usp 1,009,797 USD | 12886} USD usp U 5,006,911

AR Febrwary 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a MMA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

[+ v Dirivati Hor-cash Cash Hat Amount of
Courberparty Liabsilities Available for Offset Collateral Pledged Collateral Mledged  Derivative
Subject 1o s MNA Limbilitings *
Citigan PB usp 12,886 USD {12,886} USD —usD —usp -
Total uso 12, 886 S0 {12,886} USD — S0 —usD -
VMt i e (R E ST o fpayabde lisin 1he Ty i e i o dedaide.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Aiie! Darivatives Linkility Derivativas
Ditrisativs Statarnant Suatarant
Hat Accounted for 55 of Aisats and of Assats and
ledging Instraments Lishilitiet Location Liahilitiet Location Fair Value

Forward Breign currency  Unnealiced appreciation

exchange contracs on forward forelgn
{Curremcy Risk) currency exchange
conkracts

Unrealiced depreciation

on forward foregn

currency exchange [154:] [1.2 B8a)
contracts

The ellect of defivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 19, 2020:

Loeation of Raralinid Appriciatian or
Derivatives Not Acoounted Gair or [Loss) Gaain or {Loss) | Depreciation) on
Tar as Hedging Instrumants on Derivatives on Derivatives Derivativas

et realized losses on forward foreign

Forward foreign currency currency exchange contracts;

exchange conkracts change in wnrealized appeeciation

{Currency Risk] {deprecation) on forward lorelgn currency USH {1054 826)  USD 1,209 SES
exchange contracts

MAMNAGEMENT FEES

Thie Manager it entitled to receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust 4 management fee of a total up to 0UEE% per annum
[(L03% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Valwe up to USD 400 million and
0.22% per annum of the Net Avet Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the Investment Manager, and 0.0 pér
annum of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 million and 0.35% per annum of the MNet Asset Value over LISD 400 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-lnvestrent Manager) of the Net Asset Value sccrued on, and calculated a3 at, @ach Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears, In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurned by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the
Master Trust Deed. During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Manager earned fees of USD 512,288, of which USD
45,595 it atill outstanding as of February 29, 2020,

Thie Manager will pay thi fees of the Investment Manager out of it fees. The Investment Managers will be responsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-investment Manager and any of the Investrent Manager's delegates or other parties appainted
by the Investrment Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Trust

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fumd has a custody and accounting agreéement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custedian” and “Sub-
Admvinistrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
vl

The Custodian and Sub-Adrministrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an administration fee
[including transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Value as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

- 0.07% up to |and including) USD 250 million;

- 0065 up to [and including) LISD 500 million;

- 0.05% over LISD 500 millien,

Such adminkstration fee ks payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum annual fee of LUSD 60,000, The Sub-
Administrator is alko entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for currency administration and execution
services at the rate of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minimum annual
few of USD 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges, All out-of-pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Series Trust, During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Custodian earned fees of USD 99,038, of which USD 47,530 is
still outstanding as of February 29, 2020,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0U015% per annum of
the Net Asset Value accreed on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, subject to a
minémum annueal fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 249, 2020, the Trustee earned fees of USD 15,043, of
which USD 3,847 is still outstanding as of February 29, 2020

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the
Met Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year
ended February 29, 2020, the Agent earned fiees of USD 15,067, of which USD 2,770 is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

DISTRIBUTION FEES

The Distributors are entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serkes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annurn of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
February 29, 2020, the Distributors earned fees of USD 452,019, of which USD 81,530 Is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in cennection with the establishmient of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus of
explanatory brochures reguired, were estimated at launch to amount to approsimately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expenses will be amortised within the first five (5) financial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some
other mathod shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA § CRS compliance services,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expase i to a varsety of financial risks: market risk (including price nsk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All irvestmenits presant a risk of loss of capital The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's investmant management procedd is deseribed in Nate 1. The primary determinant of the Fund®s ability ta mesat
Its objective of mid to long term capital appreciatien while earning income s dependent on the perfarmance of the
irvestment in the residential and ecommancial morgage-backed securities.

The values of the Fund's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but nat limited to, changes in the wider
econamy, financial and currency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and credit ratings of
debt issuers, The Fund enters into forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
amount reflected on the Fund’s Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The notienal amount of the contract represents the
extent of the Fund’s participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the possible movements in forelgn currency exchange rates underlying these instruments.

Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the dhange
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expasure o loss due to counterparty non-performance on open futures, forwards, swap and options contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities.

Asset-backed securities investment risk

Assiet-backed securities inwestrent have the risk that borrawers may default on the obligations that underdie the asset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling interest rates, asset-backed securities may be called or prepaid, which
may riesult i the Series Trust having to reinvest proceeds in other investments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
the impairment of the value of the collateral underlying a security in which the Series Trust invests [due, for example, to
non-paymient of loans) will result in a reduction in the value of the secuwrity.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Concentration risk

The Series Trust imeests substantially in bonds issued by U5 agencies in accordance with its principal investment
strategles. Because such securities are bsued by a limited number of government agenches, any actual or potential
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Seres Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovemment-sponsored Issuers of mortgage-back securities similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disruption in the mortgage crisis of 2007 - 2008 and were placed under federal conservatarship at that time. Ginnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and credit of the .5, government and
are subject to the risks of U5, government securities. Similar to other issuars, changes to the finandal condition or credit
rating of the U.5. government may cause the value of the Series Trust's exposure to U5, agencies securities to decline,

Maontgage-backed securities risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent interests in “pools” of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayment and extension risk. Mortgage-backed securities react differently to changes in interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may reflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemants in
interest rates (bath increases and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduce the value of certain montgage-backed
securities. Default or bankruptcy of a counterparty to a to-be-announced transaction would expose the Series Trust to
possible loss.

Mortgage-reloted and Other Asset-Backed Securities risk

Carrtain Funds may invest in mortgage-relatisd and other acset-backed securities that directly or indirectly represent a
participation in, or are secured by and payable from, kans on real property. Mortgage-related securities are created from
pools of residential or commercial mortgage keans, inchuding mortgage laans made by savings and loan institutions,
martgage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by fived or adjustable rates. The rate of prepayments on underlying
martgages will affect the price and volatibty of a mortgage-related security, and may have the effect of shortening or
extending the effective duration of the secwrity relathee to what was anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely
payment of principal and interest of certain mortgage-related securities is guaranteed with the full faith and credit of the
US, Govemment, Pools oeated and guarantesd by non-governmental issuers, including government-spensoned
cofparations, may be supported by various forms of insurance of guarantees, but there can be no assurance that private
Insurers gr guarantors can meet their obligatiens under the insurance poficles or guarantee arrangements. Many of the
risks of investing In mortgage-related securities secured by commercial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local and
other economic conditions. on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make kease payments, and the ability of a
property bo atract and retain tenants.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur If the counterparties or issuers of debt securities falled
to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positions, The Fund’s management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect an the financial candition of the Fund.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian, there k& no guarantee that
this ar any custodian that the Fund may wse from time to time, will not become insohent, which could lead to losses for
the Fund,

‘While bath the L5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insalvency or liguidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur lesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment
objective. The Fund & subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay
amounts owed,

Liquidity Risk
Inyvestors shauld be aware that the value of Units might fall as wiell as rise. Investmant in the Fund invohoes a degree of risk;
there can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objective will be achieved,

The Fund ks exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has sufficient resources to
maet the prissent and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)
Liguidity Risk fcontinued)

acheve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monitored continually by
managemaent to ensure that the Fund has the ability to meet its obligations.

Cwrrency Risk

The Fund holds monetary and non-monetary assets and incurs monetary and non-monetary liabilities denominated in
currencies ather than USD, the Functional Currency, It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the assets and
liakiliies denominated in other currencies (“non-US0") will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Fund may
enter into currency hedging transactions from time to time in order to limit its exposure to currency risk,

The investment manager monitars the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

In the narmal course of business, the Trustee on behall of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a variety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but abo may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Administrator, Auditor or Investmient Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements is unknown, a5 exposure only arises to the extent future claims that
hawi not yit accurned are made against the Trusbee. However, based on experiencd, thee Trustes expects the risk of kds to
be remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events réview up to June 26, 2020 which is the date the financial statements were
availabhi to be issued.

Effectivee March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subscriptions of USD 94,307 in respect of JFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were subseriptions of USD 1,690 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
subscriptions of USD 1,054,815 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptions of USD 100,915 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2020 through lune 26, 2020, there were redemptions of USD 1,630,294 in respect of IFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were redemptions of USD 745,021 in respect of JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
redemnption af USD 460,675 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of WSD 662,193 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class,

There were distributions of USD 23,667 in respect of JFY Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of LISD
153,869 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, There were distributions of USD 23,250 in respect of LSD
Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 217,396 in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.
COVID-19

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization dedared the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a pandemic.
Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID-19 on global markets.

There are no ather significant events to repoart as they relate tothe Fund.

132/209



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021

57,678,622.61 6,378,102,088
2,300,820.18 254,424,696
55,377,802.43 6,123,677,393
371,844
1,659,102
45,485
345,581
10.04 1,110
10.50 1,161

9,478

9,744
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,530 685,433 3,987,144 440,898
6,678,530 738,512 4,467,144 493,977
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,531 685,434 3,987,145 440,898
6,678,531 738,512 4,467,145 493,977
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58
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2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
(1,183,017) (130,818) (1,276,979) (141,208)

(15,585,538)  (1,723,449) (19,056,557)  (2,107,274)
(15,764) (1,743) (20,971) (2,319)
(228,510) (25,269) (161,343) (17,841)
(17,012,829)  (1,881,279) (20,515,850)  (2,268,643)

2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

110.58
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 53,078 2,221,727 245,679 2,701,727 298,757
1,765,417 195,220 1,765,417 195,220
31 480,000 53,078 3,987,144 440,898 4,467,144 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
31 480,000 53,078 6,198,530 685,433 6,678,530 738,512
110.58
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220
339,626 37,556 1,074,174 118,782
(861,555) (95,271)  (1,182,743) (130,788)
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
3,938,928 435,567 2,282,080 252,352
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

110.58
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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MNIEKO® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDRD STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT M MARCH a0
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e

15935008
1 1940,108
71.2%

TAML2EE

T200,256

146480
124,271
246230

Pste 200
Asseis
Cmrrend Assets
Cash aid cash equivalmts -1 LG b
Accoim s Fecervabile 2 BRY GOT
Accrued moome end propaid expense T0125
Tolal Currenl Asaels 8,550,117
Total Mon- Currenid Assels
Tolal Assels ] 8.550,117
Liabilities aml Eqisity
Current Liabilities
Accruod expenscs amd deferred income 5 148 2040
Accoumls payable THEAD
Amounis peyable 10 group underiakngs L 1543547
Tatal Current Liabilities 15715587

2733142

Equlty

Caplital and Reserves Atiribuiable to Equity
Halders of the Company

Share caplital (31 par value, 450,000 shares
sl horered, 480600 shares =med and AR WA
odtstan<mg st 31 March 2020 and 1019

A8 0

1587144

4467144

Retained earmings 6,198,530
Total Edquity 6.675 430
Total Liablkites and Equity 5 8580117

7200256

The anaeved noles from 1 bo % Fomm an integral pan of these fancial statements.

The financial stabements on pages & Lo |7 ware approved by tbe Board of Directors on & Aogust 2000 ancd asthocesed for s and

sigreed on s hehalf by

Company regisered nuember: 179332
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MNIKED AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mok 2030 w9
Asaris
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents ] 5628 383 © ER LR
Accounts recenable 2R 607 3,150 108
Axenaed inooene and propasd exponss T0125 71,250
Total Curienl Asiéls 555,117 TR0, 86
Mom - Currenl Assels
Investmen i subsidiary 3 | 1
Taotal Mon-Curvent Assels | 1
Total Assets 3 8550118 § T.RMLIET
Liabilities aml Eqity
Cirrent Lialilities
Accraed expenses and deferred mcone L1 4820 5 148 480
Accourts payable Tgan 12437
Amoints payable to group andenakings & 1.643 547 2462391
Total Current Liabdlijes 1,571,587 2,733,142
Equisy
Capital and Feserves Abribatatde o Equlty
Halders of the Company
Share capilal {31 par value, 420,000 shares mthorized,
A0, shares tssped and oulstsnding # 31 Mardh AR D ABT M)
2000 and 2009)
Retained eamings 6,198,531 3087045
Taolal Exuity 6678 53] 4467, 145
Total Liabikities and Equity 3 580,118 3§ T 200,287

The amnemied notex from 1 1o 8 form an mlegral pant of thess fmndcsl dalonmis.

The finuncisl statements on peges & Lo |7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & Aogust 20030 and ssthorised for isase and
signeed on its bohalf by

B tia]
W=t A

Company registered member: 129352
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MIERG AN GLOBAL CAYMAN LTI

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 1020

Olpratiingg Hevenises
Investment management and adviscry fees fram third partics

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisary fees with thind parties
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Adwchit fees
(e operating and adminisirative expoises
Total oporaling exponscs

Operating Profit

Oilser [neome / (Expenses)
Cither ncome{expense), Net foreign echange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Profit Before Incoane Tax
Income tax expense

Profil atftributabde o equlty holders of the parent

Cether Comprehensive lncome for the year
Total Compreliensive Incame for e vear

All the Group's operalins are chssifiod & continusng.

The anmeved mobes from 1 1o 8 Form an anlegral pan of these fmncial statememts.

Noke
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2020 2014
19213972 11335063
19213975 335065
{1 AB3.00Th (1,276,975

(15585538 {1 056.257)
(15, 764) 20571
CXEE 51000 (161 388}
(17,00 2,55 (20,51 5.850)
2.201,144 1815212
10,240 (3,758}
10,240 (53,790
2211346 1,765,417
2211384 1765417
22011384 17685417
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MIEED AM CGLOBAL CAVAAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020

Note {”,u':’l; ':;".‘r'r'.'lf:‘ Total
Balunce at | April 2014 T Wiooh 8 2231ET s rouicrt
Net profit . 1765417 [I6sALT
Dividend pibd 5 i :
Balunce at 31 March 2619 5 W00 8 39sTidd s ademau
Nt prefit : 2211386 2211386
Dividend paid ;
Balance a1 31 March 2020 5 w000 5 Ges 5 GeTSI0

Thie anmeved moles from 1 ba % form an integral pant of these finwncial statements
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MNIEK® AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
CONSOLIPATEDR CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020
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Ml 200 Fo 0 L
Cash Fhows from Gperating Activities
Operating Profit g 2200146 1519215
Addfusdmenis for
el foreign exchmnge loss 10,340 {53,748
Operational cash flows before movements in working 2371386 165417
capital
Chamges In operaiing ssaets and labilites
Diecrease | (imcresse) in recenables IAHED6 1,074,174
(Decrcase) | Increase in payables (B61_.555) (1.182,743)
et Cash Ceneraled from Operating Actlvitfies 1,689 457 1,655,548
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends pakd -
et Cash from Flmamcing Activitles -
Mol Increase [m Cash and Cash Equivalends 1,689 457 1,655, 548
Cash md cush equivalonix, beginming of the yoar 1058 98 2R 00
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of the Year -1 X625 88 1,508 928

Thie anmexed modes from 1 to % form an integral part of these fencie] shabements.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1029

Naote 1= Genernl Infornoiion

Nikka AM Global Covman Lid the Company”™) snd fis subsidiary g ether “the Oroup™) are imcomorsied @ d domialed m the
Cayman Islamds. The wddress of the registered office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Churdh Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman slands. The peincipal activities of the Group snd Company durimg e Year were the provision of mvestiment advice and
invesiment management services bo thind paribes and other group menbas. These pon-dawory finsncial aaements have been
propared o agd the prepartion of consalidated financial $alonmis for the intomeedinle parent company_

Note ! — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting palicies adopled are st out below,

Hasls of preparation

Thie Group and Companys financial statemenis have been prepared i accordamos with Inlem atienal Fisancil Reponing Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as sdopted by the EU) and [FRIC interpretations applicsble fo companies reporting
mniber IFRS. Ax ml 31 March 20200 the Compuey bad adopted all IFR S @nd mlerpretations that had been i sased by the Intomational
Accounting Stamdands Bosnd ("LASET) and Imtemations] Financial Reporting Intapretations Committes (“IFR1C), and endorsed
by the EL. The accounting policies et out below bave been appdicd consistenily 1o all periods presented m these financial
statenments. IFRSs comprise accounting sandards saed by the LTARE snd its predocessor body as well as interpretations fssued by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

1 preparing s set of fifnoal Qalemnenls, he Comipany prepared plasble downsde soendfros sich as redudlon i freveniies
due 1o ghobal market declmes reaalting from the pasdemic. Management is satisfied tht the resuis of these scenanios supports the
going conoem baxis of preparation.

Basls of consolidation

Subvachiarres are entitics conlrodled by the Group. Control exists when the Group bas the power 1o govern the financial snd operating
policies of an enlity 0 as 10 obtain beneffls from its activilies, In assessing contral, the Group takes into considertion potential
valing rights that sre carently exercisable. The aoquisition dale is the dale on which control is irmsferred 1o the soguirer, The
financial stalemsents of subsidiarics are inchided m the conselidaed finmeial stabensemis from the date thal control commienoes
wnlil the dale that control cexses. Losses applicable to the non-conirolling inlerests in 3 subsidiary are sllocmted to the nom-
comtrolling milereds evan if doing o caises the non-controlling interess to bave a deficil balasee.

ew seoounding standards adopied
IFRS 16 Liexse Accounting 14 dfective from | Jauasy 2019, The comgany has so bases and therefoee the aandarnd has no elfoc
o e company”s financial stalements.

Measurenent convention
The financial gstements bave been prepared under the hidonical oo convention

Esdlenates aied asamplions

The preparution of financial dalements requires managemenl to make edimabes md asasmplions that affect the wmounts reported
fior assicts and Habitkes as s the balance sheet date snd e senounts reponted for revenues snd enpenses during the vear. The mature
of gst imation mesns that actual oubcomes could differ from those estimates. The sssumptions snd edimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience arwd other factors, inchading expeciations regarding likely developments in the futare. Al
31 Bdarch 2020 sed 2019 there wers no mutenial cdmales of sssumplions.

Accounts receivable

Accoiints peceivable melude amounts due for mamagemenl, advisory amd performance Tees and ansounts due from cugomens and
athers. All accounts receivable sre repavable on demand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance sheet at codl, redisced
by appropoiate allowmoes for ctimated imecoverabile smounds, and they ane mieresd bearng.

Accounts payable

Avccounts paysble mchide smounts due for subsmbdismy services nd parformance fees and amonts due 1o vendors @nd oltsers.
Al acconinds payable are classafied according 1o the substance of the contractual amangonm! eeioied mto. They are pajable on
demmnil or within one year and are reconded on the balance dheet at cosl, Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured,
inleredt free and hanve mo Fioed Lermas of repayment

Cashy aned cash equivalents

ash and cash cqaivmlents comprse aish in banks and in hand end short dem deposils with an orgimal matenty of three months
o less and forelgn asrencics bedd by the Group and Conspany, For the puspeses of the cash flow statensent, cash el cash
equivabants conssst of cash and cash equivalents 25 defined sbove, net of cotstmeding bk overdrafts.

Operating revenses

Operaling revenues includé comniisssns and invedmenl mamgemen], invedmenl i.dﬂsn'y and peerf o fees. Oy
revenues ane metsaned ol the Fair value of e consideraison recerved o receivable Tor sarvices |.I'm-.~dt-|.l=1 Ih:nnrmd I:{l.lh:i'ﬂf
busmess, et of discounts, il fees, VAT manid other sales refated taxes,

IFES 15, Revenise from Comtracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introdaced & five e approads 16 fevenue
recognition; 1) identifying the contract with the cudiom ar; inp Ldﬂ:l'l'}mg the ]'ufmm obligaisons; iii} identify the comtract price
I associted revenoe, ivh allocate the consadaoralion 1o the relevant porfs ¢ obligations, and %) recognising the revenue as the
performance ebligations are safisfied,
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bad has determined that dhere is no adpustmeni 1o the retamed camings a5 o |
Agril 2008, Compantive information has not bean sffected snd therefore no restatement is required.. The Company hasunderiaken
a review of its contmcts with customeers and concluded thal there tsno impadt on the wary in which it recognises its revenucs asno
clemnend of e revenue relles on estimates or B subgeet 10 reversal of significant restaicment.

Commisgons and mvestment managonant and advisory fees and sssocialed charges are rocogrised when the sorvioes concomed
are rendered. Irvesiment management and advisory fets are caleulated 45 aparcentage of asses under managemeanl. Commissons
are recognisod on @ rade dale basis, caboulated on o percentage of the sike. Porfformumoc focs are recognised i the paried in which
Ehey beconte dad and collecsble.

Operatlng expenses
Operaling expanses are sccounted for when they become payable

Dividends
Edquity dividends to the sharcholbder of the Group are recognised as u liability & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign carremcies
The finctional and presontalional currency of the Growp and Comgasy i US dollars (5).

Trans&ctions in cusrencies othear than US doltars are reconded o1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the imnssations
Al cech balance sheet dafe, mmdary assds md lisbililies that are demomineted in forcign onmoncics sre retrmmsbabed af the mies
provailing on ke balmee sheel date. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities carried a8 fuir value thal sre denominated m Foroign
currencics arc transiabed sl the rales prevailing at the dabe when Fair valae was delermined. Cains and losses ansing on reiranslation
are included in met profi or Joss for the perdod, eccept for exchange differences arising on non-monetary ssscts and liabilities where
the chamges in fuir vahae are recogoised dircctly inogaily.

Finamncisl indrumenls

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measurement contaimed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recommition
anwd Measurement (1A% 39), In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassified af amodised cost,
Taie value through cther comprehensive ineome of Far value tirough prolit or ks, The Company bas applicd IFRS # retrespectively,
with the Etention of including sy required adjustment 1o retained camings 25 3 | Apnl 2005 Comparstive mformation bas nol
been resated,

Thie vast majority of the Comgasy’s financial mstruments are cash and receivables which are messured af mmonised cost.

Followiag the Company's adoplion of IFRS 900 1 Apeil 200% ihe Company his evaluaied potential crodi Joses on 3l fnanaal
nsets Lhat are meenamred 8 mmortized cost. Faclors considered im determinmg whether o defanl is likely or posdble inclode whether
a pryment s overdue (and the lmgth of that ponod), sny known deterioration in the oredst quality’ of o clientGounterpaty or other
ismmes that coull sdversely affect 8 client’s'counterparty’s credit quality,

For financial assets where there i no known isaves affedting crodit quality, expooted onedil lesses are acalculated based on the bosass
that are expected tobe inourmed over o rollmg twelve-moeith peri od. Given the natuse of the Company's fimncial assets {i.e. mostly
cash l bank), there is & very bow credit ridc. The Company is also considering the use of money markel funds o increase
diversificatsom and further reduce credit risk

For any financial asscts where the contractual paymsent is moce than 30 days past doe. the defaull posilion is 1o axaeme an increise
in eredil sk However, defaalt levels in the padt have besn immatenial snd there were po foe receivaliles past die asat 31 Mafch
H2.

Invesimends in subsidiaries
Invedments im subsddiaries are stabed i tee parenl company®s bakande sheet ul cosd less any provigions for impammmil

Note 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ar 31 March 2000 and 31 March 201% ithe Company had an Evesiment of 31, In the opinion of the directors, the Companys
investment is not impaired, Details of the investment are as follows.

Sumbser, class and

Country of perceniaze of dhares
Invesler Incorpor ation Frincipal sctivity held b the Company
Cayinan 1 O share
PR AR oy | LI Islunds Ky e o 51, 100%

Note 4 — Taxation

Al 31 March 2020 and 3019, the tax rate applicalde to the Gromip and the Company's profils i (# becanse thore i no s levied
an Cayman kshinds companies.
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Mote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Company’s financial instramsents comprise cash mvd cash equivalents and receivable and payable balances thal
artse from i1s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalnts are carmied al ool which i considened o approvinmte to Fair vahse
b 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks associated with the Group snd Company’s financial
asscte and Habilities s st out below;

Credie risk

Credit nisk = defned as the nsk of ol b due o o counterparty’s faihire o honour its obligation principally in rolation 1o
tramsctions where the Growp of Company provides goods o services on deferred terms and where it invesds or doposils amplus
cash, The Groap or Comgany do nol believe that they are materially exposed to credit nisk ns its smbes debfors are managed group
fimds amd therefore managomant end performance fecs receivable are govemod by its agreements with these fimds. To mitigate
anmy resadual risk of these aweta failing to be deliverad. the Greap and Company ensure that the terms of these spreements in
relation to payments of | & % mnd per ¢ Fres are adbvered o by moniloring its 3ged debtor analysis against the sgreed
servioe bevel agreamants.

The Group and Company sdopls the policy of dealmg with cadtomens of sppropmate credit history. For olber fimancial asets, the
Croanp vl Comgpany adapts the policy of dealimg with finaneial inituisons snd olber counterpantics with high credit ratings. There
are no financial assets pasl dus amd £ or enpaired 258 31 March 2020 a0 2019, Tradk recervables are due o leasl quarterly, sad are
mormally seitled within 30 days of their due dale. There ane no overdue trade reoonvables ot the balmot shod date.

Further, with regand o band: doposits, the Group mnd Compay only depessits moncy with approved comterpartses on agroed fams

Mar ki risk

Mwrket risk {or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which & common to an entire class of assels or liabslitics whereby their walse
an Miduale simply bocuse of ooonomic changes of othar ovents thal smpad large potions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do pot believe that they are exposed o material market risk as the assets the Group and Company mamage are held by
ared o the benefit of fumd hodders through sepamle lezal entitics.

Currency risk

Cusrency risk iz definod as the nisk that the vabae of Group or Company assets md labilities denomisnated in currencies other than
the functional aerency of the Group or Company will change in value dae 1o movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group
and Company are exposed 1o cumency risk misng from vanions currency exposures, primarily with resped to the Japaness Yen
IV, Sterling Pound (SBP) and Singapore Dollar {3000, The Oreup and Company™s fee income i3 received mainly in USD and
JEY, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these comenci¢s strengthenedweakened by 10% againg the USD with all other vanshles
mchuding tax mate being held constant, the Group and Company's prafil befiore tux for the fnancisl yoar would have boen
Bigheeribower ms @ sl of currency transkalion losscsipains on the ranainmg cusrency denomisated cash balances, trade receivables
e pqyiilﬁ; bwy the below amounts.

Currency 2020 2009
(Rounded 1o nearest § thousandy
Y 5 3,000 3 54,000
GEP T, (e 05 M
20D 15,000 R1ALLT
EUR 2,060 .

Liquidtity risk amd Mnancial solvency risk

Liquadity risk is defined as the risk thet the Group or Compmy will not be sble to meeel its financial obligatins as they fll due
The Group and Company’s appresch 1o managing this risk B b enaare thal il has saffcent Hguidity to nseet i3 Habilndes when
e, both umder nonmisl amd sressed conditions

Capital managemeni
The Group and Comijeey capital position i% momilored on an ongomg bass 1o owsre that i is adequate. Thioe are no extomally

impidd capital requiremicnts.

Falr Yalue of Financlal Ingrumenis
The fair values of fimncial assels and fiancial Babilitics that are eded in active markets are based on qeoled market prices o
deaber price quodations. For all other financial insfruments, the Group ddamine fir valies usng other valistion tedmigaes.

For financial instnaments that trade mifrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less obgective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending oo liquidity. conceniratim, uncetainty of markel factors, pricing assumglions and ofher nisks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tehle below apalyees finmncal msnaments. into a fair value hiemrchy based on the vabaation techmique used 1o debermeine fair
value

& Level 1 quoled prices funadp sted) in netive markels for sdendicnl niets or liabilities

® Level 20 inguits other than quoted prices included withim Level 1 ths are observable for the sssel o lisbility, either direcly
(i.e.. a5 prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices)

®  Level 3t dmpuls for the mesel of liability that are nol based on observable mket data (unobservable mgauls),
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Year ended 3 March 2428 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal 2620
Ameli 5 3 5 5

Cash wed cash exquivalent LH18385 54628385
Accomls receivable TR51.607 2R51.607
Acerued meome and propaid expense 0125 oS
Lintsdlithes

Acerued expense and defomed imcome 148 X0 148 1)
Acdoumls payable TR0 TREM
Accoimls payabile 1o groap

- I . 16435407 L 1683 54T
Yoear ended 3 March 2009 Leved | Lawe] 3 Larvel 3 Tatal 3015
Asets H H 5 H

Cash wxd cash equivalms 1938508 - 1958938
Acooumnls receivable 090,108 - 3090108
Acernad meome and prepaid expense 71250 71250
Llubsilfibes

Acerued expense and deferred income 146480 146,480
Accoumlis payable 124271 124271
Accounts payable o groap

dndentikings 1AEL39] - 1462391

Al finamcial assds and lmbslitics we camod al histoncl cost. The fasr valuces of all finmncial msds and labglilios are smlar o
their carryimg vahpes owing to their short kema nasture.

Note 6 - Helated Party Transactions
Transections between the Group and Company snd relsted pariees are dischsed below:

Debilor as Credilor asal
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Yoenr emded 31 March 2020 Hevenues Expemses (n) P (] 202 ihy
Nikko Aseet Mmagomml Amencas, Inc. 5 = 3 4 939 085 5 = 5 686,458
Hikko Assct Management Europe Lid. - 1,165335 - #1551
NWikko Assel Mmnagemant Co, Lid. - 6464 511 179,247 .
Nikko Assel Mamagement Asia Lid, - 1 500,198 - 157384
Hikko Aszel Mmagemanl Hong Kong - 115458 - 7000
Talsl 3 & 1601038 5 179,247 5 181
Drelslor as Credlilor as an
Operating Opirating al 31 March A1 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hevenies Expeises (a) 2019 (b} 2019}
Hikko Assel Mmnagemanl Americas, [nc. i = 3 4, 735,000 5 = -1 A5DTTS
Wikl Asset Management Europe Lid, - SATRSM - 1253, 147
Nikko Asct Mmnagemant Co, Led. - A3 30 = 07 671
Mikko Asset Management Asia Lid - TOTLE4R - S40.063
Nikko Asscl Managemant Hong Keng . 136,852 . 12.733
Talzl 3 3 I OEG55T 3 5 AT
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{a) Operaling experses paid (o relsted parties we payable under mvestment management agreements and are for fland
management servaces,

(b} The amounts cutdmding are unsecured and will be setibed in cash, No gusrmtees have been given or received. No provisions
laavie boan made for doubtful delbis in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Nikko Assct Mmnzgomonl Amaricas, Ing., Mikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., Nikko Asect Managemond Asia Led md RNikke
Asud Management Hong Bong arc [ellow subssdiarics. Mikko Assa Managanant Co, Lid bx an imdiceet sharchalder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note T - Ultineie Holding Company

Thie Greap is & wholly owned sobsidiary of Nikko AM Global Holdings Lid, (s smmediste parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered im England end Wales.

In the opinion of the direcbors the altimate parent company. and controllimg pany. ts Sumdteme Mian Test Holdings, Inc. a
company incorporsted in Jepn, Financial satensents for Sumitoma Mitsai Trust Holdings. Inc, are svailable 1o the public from

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plasming Depariment, Samitoma Mitsai Trust Huldq:. Ime. L=dal, M:.l‘uurul.th Chiyoda-
ko, Tokoyo 100-8233, Japan. Copies of the anmeal repoet can be viewed or retrieved firom

Note § — Subsequent Events

Subsecuant 16 the sdstoment of finmaal postion dat e, there were no cvents which had m impsa on the consolidated and mdividual
Tknancisl sabensents of the Company.
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30

2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,530 685,433
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,530 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472

110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30
2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,531 685,434
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,531 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
(488,340) (54,001) (1,183,017) (130, 818)
(6,365,716) (703,921) (15,585,538)  (1,723,449)
(9,058) (1,002) (15,764) (1,743)
(116,613) (12,895) (228,510) (25,269)
(6,979,727) (771,818) (17,012,829)  (1,881,279)
1,345,582 148,794 2,201,146 243,403
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535

110.58
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2020 30

( ) C ) ( ) « ) ( ) « )
2019 31 480,000 53,078 3,987,145 440,898 4,467,145 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
2020 31 480,000 53,078 6,198,531 685,434 6,678,531 738,512
(424,600)  (46,952)  (424,600)  (46,952)
1,370,217 151,519 1,370,217 151,519
2020 30 480,000 53,078 7,144,148 790,000 7,624,148 843,078

110.58
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31

1,345,583 148,795 2,201,147 243,403

24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132

86,982 9,618 339,626 37,556

244,878 27,079 (861,555) (95,271)

1,702,078 188,216 1,689,458 186,820

(424,600) (46,952)
(424,600) (46,952)

1,277,478 141,264 1,689,458 186,820

5,628,386 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

6,905,864 763,650 5,628,386 622,387

110.58
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2020 30
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
1ASB IFRS
2020 30 2020 31

163/209



A A A A A

N " S\

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

2018

IAS 18
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IFRS 9 1AS 39 1AS 39
IFRS 9 ) ) )
2018 IFRS 9
2018 IFRS 9
12
30
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
100
2020 30 2020 31
2020 30 2020 31
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30
JPY GBP SGD
2020 30
2020 31 10
2020 30 2020 31
JPY 38,000 36,000
GBP 76,000 76,000
SGD 45,000 15,000
EUR 4,000 2,000
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2020 30 2020 30
2020 30 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

702,454 140,109

4,112,350 1,099,130

643,733 231,193

796,864 434,732

110,316 8,430

6,365,717 1,913,594

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

2,660,526 261,856

8,822,358 991,951

2,185,998 245,353

1,801,198 137,386

115,458 7,001

15,585,538 1,643,547

(a
®
100-8233
IR

http://www_smth_jp/en/
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@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2021 36,936,427 40 8,443
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2020 12 1,040,000,000 1,150 320
(©))
UFJ
2021 405
-2
SMBC
2021 875
(O]
2021 173 63
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®

DoubleLine Capital LP)

1940

@

90
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@

)

®

CIMA

)
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Q)
UFJ SMBC
()
®
UFJ
JSDA
JSDA
)
©
SEC
()
Q)
1940
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)

@

@

®) UFJ
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100
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1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
(a
1993
2020

(b
2020

1.4

1.5 2019 12 10,857
2,886
2020
2020
1.6
2.1

CIMA

CIMA
2.2

2.3

O

(a
(b
(c
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2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6

3.1

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA

CIMA

3.3

(a 80,000 CIMA 100,000

(b

CIMA
3.4

2020 CIMA
CIMA

15

80,000 100,000
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4.1
CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
CIMA
5.4 CIMA
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CIMA
21
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
48
3.2
10



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

@i

(A
B 12

(c
CIMA

CIMA

6.1

(a

O

(c

«

CIMA

(A

17

36,585
8,536
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CIMA

CIMA

c

CIMA

24,390 30,488
8,536
42,682



6.2

6.3

(f
@

(h
@

(k

(m

(n

(vii

30

(a

®

(c

«

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

20

(a

O

CIMA

178/209

50

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1907



6.4

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

(a

O

(c

@i

(vi

2016

50
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«

(e 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6
CIMA CIMA

7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c
«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7 CIMA CIMA

(a CIVA
® CIMA
(c
(d CIVA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
@a b)
a)

(b

(c
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@
(e
.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

.11 CIMA CIMA

A2 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CIMA CIMA
.13 7.9(e)

7.14  7.13
7.15  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CINMA
CINA
c () CINMA CINA

16 7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15 CINA
CIMA

17 7.15 CIMA
(a CIVA
(b 94(4)
(c
«
(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
.18 CIMA 7.17
7.9
.19 CIMA  7.9(a)

.20 7.17(c)

.21 CIMA CIMA

b)
a)

CIMA
.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

500

CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA
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8.5 8.3

CIMA
10
8.6 CIMA CIMA

(a
(b
8.7 CIMA

8.8 CIMA 8.10
(a
(b

(c

(

(e

(f
@

(h

8.9 8.8 CIMA CIMA

(a
€ CIMA

(i CIMA
(iii
(iv CIMA
(Y CIMA
(vi CIMA
(vii
(viii  CIMA CIMA
(b CIMA
(c CIMA
(d CINA
8.10 8.8 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(¢
(e
8.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA CIMA

8.12  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CINA CINA
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8.13  8.10(e)

8.14 8.13

8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a CINA CINA CINA
(b CIMA CINA

c O CIMA CIMA
8.16  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a 8.15

(b CINA

CIMA

8.17 8.15 CIMA

(a CINA

(b 94(4)

(c CIMA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

8.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

8.19 CIMA CIMA

(a CINA

O
8.20 CINA  8.10

8.21 CIMA

9.1 CIMA
(a
(b

«
CIMA
9.2 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
CIMA
9.3 CIMA
(a 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
(b
(c
9.4 CIMA

CIMA CIMA
CIMA
(a
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9.5

9.6

(b
(c
@

(e

10 CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

20

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

10.1

11

(a

(b

(c

(a

(b

(c

@

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

11.1

11.2
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11.3
(a 14(1)

14(2)

(b

11.4
(a

@i
(i
¢

(c

(

(e

11.5

(a

O

11.6

12
12.1 257

12.2 247 248
(a

O 10
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(c

13
13.1
2008

CINA
7.17(b) 8.17(b)

13.2

CINA
7.17(c)

13.3

CINA 7.17(d)

13.4

13.5

6.1(1) 6.2(0) 6.3(i) 6.4(e)

14
14.1

O1CY)

2003 11 17

CIMA

14.2  CIMA CIMA

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6 20
CIMA
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CIMA

14.7
(a 13.1

@i

(vii

(vi

O

CIMA

(c
CIMA

(d @@

CIMA

14.8
@a CINA

CIMA
(b

(c

«

14.9
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Report of Independent Auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of
DoubleLine Total Return Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management® s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of DoubleLine Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2021, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 6, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 29,
2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 29, 2020, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 26, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company®s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company®s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group®s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company®s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director®s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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